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         1                    P R O C E E D I N G S



         2           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, BEFORE WE BEGIN,



         3  MR. HOUCK HAS SOMEONE HE WOULD LIKE TO INTRODUCE TO THE



         4  COURT.



         5           MR. HOUCK:  I WOULD JUST LIKE TO INTRODUCE TO THE



         6  COURT ATTORNEY GENERAL RICHARD BLUMENTHAL OF CONNECTICUT.



         7           THE COURT:  NICE TO HAVE YOU HERE, MR. ATTORNEY



         8  GENERAL.



         9                 CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION



        10  BY MR. HOLLEY:



        11  Q.   GOOD AFTERNOON, MR. MCGEADY.  DID YOU SPEAK TO ANYONE



        12  DURING THE LUNCHEON RECESS ABOUT YOUR TESTIMONY?



        13  A.   NOT OTHER THAN COUNSEL.



        14           MR. HOLLEY:  WE WOULD LIKE TO OFFER A DOCUMENT



        15  PREVIOUSLY MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION AS DEFENDANT'S



        16  EXHIBIT 1819, WHICH IS AN E-MAIL MESSAGE FROM STEVEN



        17  MCGEADY TO ANDY GROVE AND CRAIG KINNIE DATED, DECEMBER 12,



        18  1996.



        19           MR. MALONE:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



        20           THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 1819 IS ADMITTED.



        21                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1819 WAS



        22                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



        23  BY MR. HOLLEY:



        24  Q.   DIRECTING YOUR ATTENTION TO THE SECOND PARAGRAPH OF



        25  THIS DOCUMENT, MR. MCGEADY, IS IT CORRECT, IS IT NOT, AS�
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         1  THIS STATES, THAT YOU HAVE LONG TAKEN THE POSITION WITHIN



         2  THE INTEL CORPORATION THAT ANYTHING THAT POTENTIALLY



         3  WEAKENS MICROSOFT WITHOUT DIRECTLY WEAKENING INTEL IS GOOD



         4  FOR INTEL?



         5  A.   YES, IT'S BEEN MY POSITION THAT A MORE COMPETITIVE



         6  SOFTWARE INDUSTRY IS BENEFICIAL TO INTEL.



         7  Q.   AND MY QUESTION TO YOU, SIR, IS THAT IT HAS BEEN AND



         8  IS YOUR POSITION THAT ANYTHING THAT WOULD WEAKEN THE



         9  MICROSOFT CORPORATION WITHOUT ALSO WEAKENING INTEL IS GOOD



        10  FOR INTEL?



        11  A.   MY POSITION IS THAT ANYTHING THAT WOULD CAUSE A MORE



        12  COMPETITIVE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY, AND I THINK A MORE



        13  COMPETITIVE INDUSTRY COULD BE BROUGHT ABOUT BY A WEAKER



        14  MICROSOFT, WOULD BE GOOD FOR INTEL.



        15  Q.   AND ONE OF THE WAYS IN WHICH YOU THOUGHT THAT



        16  MICROSOFT MIGHT BE WEAKENED, IN YOUR WORDS, WAS THROUGH



        17  THE EMERGENCE OF NETSCAPE; IS THAT CORRECT?



        18  A.   MY FEELING IS THAT NETSCAPE WOULD, IN FACT, PROVIDE



        19  VIABLE COMPETITION TO MICROSOFT AND, THEREBY, IMPROVE THE



        20  OVERALL COMPETITIVE LEVEL OF THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY.



        21  Q.   AND YOU DID EVERYTHING WITHIN YOUR POWER TO GIVE



        22  NETSCAPE WHATEVER ASSISTANCE YOU COULD; IS THAT CORRECT?



        23  A.   OH, I DON'T KNOW IF YOU COULD CHARACTERIZE IT AS



        24  BEING EVERYTHING WITHIN MY POWER.  I CERTAINLY WORKED WITH



        25  NETSCAPE AS AN IMPORTANT AND VIABLE COMPANY IN THE�
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         1  SOFTWARE INDUSTRY.



         2  Q.   AND DIRECTING YOUR ATTENTION, MR. MCGEADY, TO ITEM



         3  FIVE IN YOUR LIST OF WAYS IN WHICH NETSCAPE MIGHT WEAKEN



         4  MICROSOFT, YOU SAID TO DR. GROVE THAT IT WAS POSSIBLE THAT



         5  MICROSOFT COULD BE GOADED INTO DOING SOMETHING REALLY



         6  STUPID AND ANTICOMPETITIVE, FINALLY ENRAGING THE



         7  APPARENTLY PLACID ANTITRUST POLICE, BY WHICH YOU MEANT THE



         8  DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE; IS THAT CORRECT?



         9  A.   YEAH, THAT WOULD BE WHO I WAS REFERRING TO.



        10  Q.   AND YOU HAVE DONE EVERYTHING THAT YOU COULD THINK OF



        11  TO ENRAGE THE JUSTICE DEPARTMENT TO TAKE ACTION AGAINST



        12  MICROSOFT, HAVEN'T YOU?



        13  A.   NO.



        14           MR. HOLLEY:  I HAVE NO FURTHER QUESTIONS AT THIS



        15  TIME, YOUR HONOR.



        16                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION



        17  BY MR. BOIES:



        18  Q.   GOOD AFTERNOON, MR. MCGEADY.



        19  A.   GOOD AFTERNOON.



        20  Q.   I'M APPARENTLY A PART OF THAT PLACID ANTITRUST



        21  POLICE.



        22           I WOULD LIKE TO ASK YOU A QUESTION ABOUT WHAT



        23  MR. HOLLEY WAS JUST ASKING YOU ABOUT, AND MAYBE WE COULD



        24  PUT DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1819 UP ON THE SCREEN, AND I WANT



        25  TO DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO PARTICULARLY PARAGRAPH FIVE,�
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         1  WHERE IMMEDIATELY AFTER THE PORTION MR. HOLLEY READ, YOU



         2  WRITE, QUOTE, NOTHING BUT WINDOWS, CLOSED QUOTE, CONTRACT



         3  LANGUAGE BORDERS ON THIS.  CAN YOU EXPLAIN WHAT YOU MEANT



         4  BY THAT.



         5  A.   IT WAS MY UNDERSTANDING AT THE TIME THAT MICROSOFT



         6  HAD STARTED ENFORCING ON THE ORIGIN EQUIPMENT



         7  MANUFACTURERS, THE PC MANUFACTURERS, CONTRACT LANGUAGE



         8  WHICH PREVENTED THEM FROM LOADING ANYTHING ON THEIR



         9  MACHINE OR ANYTHING ON THE MICROSOFT WINDOWS DESKTOP THAT



        10  WAS DIFFERENT THAN THE STANDARD MICROSOFT RELEASE.  A



        11  NUMBER OF MANUFACTURERS, INCLUDING COMPAQ, HAD



        12  ACCESSORIZED EITHER THE SPLASH SCREEN OR OTHER ASPECTS OF



        13  THE USER INTERFACE, AND IT HAD BEEN MY UNDERSTANDING AT



        14  THE TIME THAT MICROSOFT HAD PUT CONTRACT LANGUAGE IN PLACE



        15  PROHIBITING THESE PRACTICES.



        16  Q.   THANK YOU.



        17           I NOW WOULD LIKE TO GO TO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 280,



        18  WHICH ARE YOUR AUGUST 28, 1995, NOTES.  AND I PARTICULARLY



        19  WOULD LIKE TO BLOW UP THE THIRD-TO-LAST PARAGRAPH, THE ONE



        20  THAT BEGINS AUGUST 2, 1995, AND HAVE YOU LOOK AT THAT.



        21           AND IN THERE YOU MAKE A REFERENCE TO MICROSOFT



        22  ANNOUNCING ON AUGUST 2, 1995, A MAJOR PROGRAM TO SUPPORT



        23  DIGITAL EQUIPMENT'S ALPHA MICROPROCESSOR.  DO YOU SEE



        24  THAT?



        25  A.   YES, I DO.�
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         1  Q.   NOW, MR. HOLLEY SHOWED YOU A DOCUMENT FROM TWO OR



         2  THREE YEARS EARLIER ABOUT THE ALPHA MICROPROCESSOR, TO



         3  SUGGEST TO YOU--AND, IN FACT, HE SUGGESTED TO YOU



         4  EXPLICITLY THAT YOU WERE SIMPLY OFF BY ABOUT THREE YEARS



         5  WHEN YOU WROTE THIS.  DO YOU RECALL THAT?



         6  A.   I RECALL THAT QUESTIONING, YES.



         7           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, I WOULD LIKE TO OFFER



         8  EXHIBITS 1310 AND 1311.



         9           MR. HOLLEY:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



        10  BY MR. BOIES:



        11  Q.   NOW, THESE ARE WALL STREET JOURNAL ARTICLES.  AND



        12  FIRST, EXHIBIT 1310 IS A WALL STREET JOURNAL ARTICLE OF



        13  AUGUST 1, 1995; IS THAT CORRECT?



        14  A.   YES, IT IS.



        15  Q.   AND WHERE IT ANNOUNCES "MICROSOFT DIGITAL EXPECTED TO



        16  BROADEN PARTNERSHIP"--DO YOU SEE THAT?



        17  A.   YES, I DO.



        18           THE COURT:  LET ME ADMIT THEM FIRST.



        19           MR. BOIES:  I APOLOGIZE, YOUR HONOR.



        20           THE COURT:  1311 IS ALSO A WALL STREET JOURNAL



        21  ARTICLE DATED AUGUST 1ST?



        22           MR. BOIES:  YES.  1310 IS A WALL STREET JOURNAL



        23  ARTICLE DATED AUGUST 1ST.  1311 IS A WALL STREET JOURNAL



        24  ARTICLE DATED AUGUST 3.



        25           THE COURT:  I KIND OF GOT THE NUMBERS REVERSED�
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         1  HERE.



         2           MR. BOIES:  THEN YOUR HONOR HAS THEM RIGHT.  I



         3  APOLOGIZE.  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1310--



         4           THE COURT:  AUGUST 3RD?



         5           MR. BOIES:  AUGUST 3RD.  AND GOVERNMENT



         6  EXHIBIT 1311 IS AUGUST 1.



         7           THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 1310 AND 1311 ARE



         8  ADMITTED.



         9                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NOS. 1310 AND



        10                          1311 WERE ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



        11  BY MR. BOIES:



        12  Q.   NOW, EXHIBIT 1311 IS AN AUGUST 1, 1995, WALL STREET



        13  JOURNAL ARTICLE HEADED "MICROSOFT DIGITAL EXPECTED TO



        14  BROADEN PARTNERSHIP," AND DOWN AT THE BOTTOM IT TALKS



        15  ABOUT HOW THIS IS GOING TO USE THE DIGITAL HIGH-SPEED



        16  ALPHA 64-BIT CHIP.



        17           DO YOU SEE THAT?



        18  A.   YES, I DO.



        19  Q.   YOU DIDN'T MAKE THIS UP, DID YOU, MR. MCGEADY?



        20  A.   NO, I DID NOT.



        21           MR. BOIES:  I WOULD NOW LIKE TO OFFER GOVERNMENT



        22  EXHIBIT 1312.



        23           MR. HOLLEY:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



        24           MR. BOIES:  WHICH, FOR THE RECORD, IS AN



        25  AUGUST 2, 1995, WALL STREET JOURNAL ARTICLE.�

                                                           10



         1           THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 1312 IS ADMITTED.



         2                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1312 WAS



         3                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



         4  BY MR. BOIES:



         5  Q.   AND THIS IS A WALL STREET JOURNAL ARTICLE ON THE DATE



         6  OF THE MEETING THAT YOU REFERRED TO; IS THAT CORRECT, SIR?



         7  A.   YES, IT IS.



         8  Q.   AND THIS DOCUMENT IS HEADED "DIGITAL EQUIPMENT BOOSTS



         9  TURNAROUND."



        10           DO YOU SEE THAT?



        11  A.   YES, I DO.



        12  Q.   AND DO YOU SEE IN THE THIRD PARAGRAPH WHERE IT SAYS,



        13  "TRADERS WERE ANTICIPATING NEWS EXPECTED TODAY OF A



        14  PRODUCT-SUPPORT ALLIANCE BETWEEN DIGITAL AND SOFTWARE



        15  LEADER MICROSOFT CORPORATION"?



        16  A.   YES, I DO.



        17  Q.   AND NOW LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT



        18  EXHIBIT 1310, WHICH IS THE WALL STREET JOURNAL ARTICLE



        19  DATED AUGUST 3, 1995, THAT REPORTS ON THE ANNOUNCEMENT



        20  MADE ON AUGUST 2, AND IT'S HEADED "MICROSOFT/DIGITAL



        21  TEAMUP IN MARKET FOR SERVERS BROADENING PARTNERSHIP."



        22           DO YOU SEE THAT?



        23  A.   YES, I DO.



        24  Q.   AND ON THE SECOND PAGE THERE IS A PARAGRAPH THAT



        25  SAYS, "MR. COPPERMAN AND OTHERS SAID THE RELATIONSHIP WILL�
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         1  HELP ENCOURAGE SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT FOR COMPUTERS BASED ON



         2  THE ALPHA CHIP.  DIGITAL HAS ALREADY SENT ABOUT 400 ALPHA



         3  SYSTEMS TO THE MICROSOFT CAMPUS IN REDMOND, WASHINGTON,



         4  WHERE DIGITAL ENGINEERS WILL WORK ON WAYS TO IMPROVE



         5  WINDOWS NT'S PERFORMANCE WITH THE ALPHA SYSTEMS."



         6           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?



         7  A.   YES.



         8  Q.   WAS THIS ANNOUNCEMENT REPORTED IN THESE THREE



         9  ARTICLES ON AUGUST 1ST, AUGUST 2ND, AND AUGUST 3RD OF



        10  1995, WHAT YOU WERE REFERRING TO IN YOUR MEMORANDUM DATED



        11  AUGUST 28TH, 1995, ABOUT A MAJOR PROGRAM TO SUPPORT



        12  DIGITAL EQUIPMENT'S ALPHA MICROPROCESSOR?



        13  A.   YES, IT WAS.  THE ACTUAL ANNOUNCEMENT WAS, MORE OR



        14  LESS, COINCIDENT WITH THE TIMING OF THE MEETING ON AUGUST



        15  2ND.



        16  Q.   YOU WEREN'T THREE YEARS OFF, WERE YOU, SIR?



        17  A.   NO, I WASN'T.



        18  Q.   LET ME TURN NEXT TO THE SUGGESTION THAT WAS MADE TO



        19  YOU ON CROSS-EXAMINATION THAT THE MAIN COMPLAINT THAT



        20  MICROSOFT HAD TO INTEL ABOUT INTEL'S SOFTWARE WORK WAS



        21  THAT INTEL WAS DOING WORK OF POOR QUALITY.  DO YOU RECALL



        22  THAT?



        23  A.   YES, I DO.



        24  Q.   DO YOU RECALL MR. HOLLEY SUGGESTING THAT WHEN YOU



        25  SAID TO THE CONTRARY YOU EITHER WERE EMBELLISHING THINGS�
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         1  OR MAKING THEM UP?



         2  A.   YES, I DO.



         3  Q.   FIRST, LET ME GO TO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 563.  AND IN



         4  PARTICULAR, I WOULD LIKE TO GO TO THE FIRST PARAGRAPH



         5  UNDER DETAILS.



         6           NOW, THIS IS A MEMORANDUM FROM MR. HOLZHAMMER,



         7  GERALD HOLZHAMMER, OF INTEL; IS THAT CORRECT, SIR?



         8  A.   YES, IT IS.



         9  Q.   YOU DID NOT WRITE THIS, DID YOU?



        10  A.   NO, I DID NOT.



        11  Q.   WHAT IS MR. HOLZHAMMER'S POSITION?



        12  A.   AT THE TIME, GERRY WAS THE HEAD OF THE NSP



        13  DEVELOPMENT GROUP IN THE INTEL ARCHITECTURE LABS.



        14  Q.   AND MR. HOLZHAMMER HERE WRITES THAT MICROSOFT IS



        15  UPSET WITH INTEL BEING IN, QUOTE, THEIR, CLOSED QUOTE, OS



        16  SPACE.



        17           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?



        18  A.   YES.



        19  Q.   AND YOU RECEIVED A COPY OF THIS AT THE TIME?



        20  A.   YES, I DID.



        21  Q.   NOW, YOU DIDN'T MAKE THIS UP OR EMBELLISH THIS, DID



        22  YOU, SIR?



        23  A.   NO, THIS IS GERRY'S FIRST-HAND REPORTING OF THE



        24  MEETING.



        25  Q.   LET ME GO TO ANOTHER MEMORANDUM, OR LET ME GO TO�

                                                           13



         1  ANOTHER--BEFORE WE DO THAT, LET ME GO TO ANOTHER PART OF



         2  THIS MEMORANDUM.  THE PARAGRAPH THAT BEGINS "IN SHORT,"



         3  WHERE MR. HOLZHAMMER SAYS THAT, "IN SHORT, MICROSOFT FEELS



         4  THEY NEED TO OWN ALL DRIVER SOFTWARE TO THE METAL, I.E.,



         5  THE SILICON."



         6           DO YOU SEE THAT?



         7  A.   YES, I DO.



         8  Q.   AND AGAIN, THIS WASN'T SOMETHING THAT MR.--WAS THIS



         9  SOMETHING THAT MR. HOLZHAMMER WROTE BECAUSE YOU ASKED HIM



        10  TO?



        11  A.   NO.  I'M ASSUMING THAT HE'S QUOTING MICROSOFT IN THE



        12  MEMO.



        13  Q.   OKAY.  LET ME GO TO EXHIBIT 279, WHICH IS A



        14  MEMORANDUM BY MR. WHITTIER.



        15           AND THIS IS MR. WHITTIER'S MEMORANDUM BASED ON



        16  THE AUGUST 2, 1995, MEETING; IS THAT CORRECT?



        17  A.   YES, IT IS.



        18  Q.   NOW, MR. WHITTIER SENDS THIS MEMORANDUM TO 15 PEOPLE,



        19  INCLUDING MR. GROVE AND YOURSELF; CORRECT, SIR?



        20  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.



        21  Q.   LET ME GO TO THE SECOND PARAGRAPH THERE THAT'S HEADED



        22  "GATES ISSUE," WHERE IT SAYS MR. GATES HAS A, QUOTE,



        23  FUNDAMENTAL PROBLEM WITH FREE SOFTWARE FROM INTEL



        24  CROSS-SUBSIDIZED BY PROCESSOR REVENUES.



        25           AND MR. WHITTIER GOES ON TO WRITE THAT GATES�
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         1  WOULD NOT AGREE TO LET PROCESSORS AND OPERATING SYSTEM



         2  PROGRAMS TO PROGRESS UNENCUMBERED BY PLATFORM AND



         3  COMMUNICATIONS PROGRAM ISSUES.



         4           DO YOU SEE THAT?



         5  A.   YES, I DO.



         6  Q.   NOW, MR. HOLLEY PLAYED FOR YOU A NUMBER OF PORTIONS



         7  OF MR. WHITTIER'S DEPOSITION, AND I TAKE IT FROM YOUR



         8  ANSWERS TO HIM THAT YOU BELIEVE THAT MR. WHITTIER IS AN



         9  HONEST AND COMPETENT PERSON?



        10  A.   ABSOLUTELY.



        11  Q.   AND WHEN MR. WHITTIER WROTE THIS, DID YOU HAVE ANY



        12  DOUBT THAT THAT IS WHAT HAPPENED AT THIS MEETING?



        13  A.   NO, NOT--NO DOUBT WHATSOEVER.



        14  Q.   NOW, THIS MEMORANDUM WENT TO 15 EXECUTIVES WITHIN



        15  INTEL.



        16           INSOFAR AS YOU ARE AWARE, DID ANY OF THEM EVER



        17  SAY TO YOU OR, INSOFAR AS YOU KNOW, ANYONE ELSE THAT



        18  MR. WHITTIER HAD GOTTEN THIS WRONG?



        19  A.   NO, NO.  EVERYONE--CERTAINLY, ANYONE WHO WAS AT THE



        20  MEETING WOULD HAVE AGREED WITH THIS CHARACTERIZATION, AND



        21  I DON'T KNOW OF ANYONE AT INTEL WHO WOULD CHARACTERIZE RON



        22  AS, IN ANY WAY, INFLATING AN ISSUE.  IF ANYTHING, RON



        23  WOULD HAVE STATED IT IN NONCOLORFUL SEDATE LANGUAGE.



        24  Q.   NOW, MR. HOLLEY PLAYED SOME PORTIONS OF THE



        25  DEPOSITION OF MR. WHITTIER IN WHICH MR. WHITTIER SAID HE�
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         1  DIDN'T REMEMBER CERTAIN THINGS, AND I WOULD LIKE TO PLAY



         2  YOU A PORTION OF MR. WHITTIER'S DEPOSITION, AND I WOULD



         3  ASK YOU TO LISTEN TO IT, AND I AM GOING TO ASK YOU SOME



         4  QUESTIONS ABOUT IT.



         5           THE COURT:  PAGE AND LINE NUMBER?



         6           MR. BOIES:  PAGE 26, LINE SIX, TO PAGE 29, LINE



         7  TWO.  AND WE HAVE FURNISHED THAT TO THE OTHER SIDE, AND



         8  THEY HAVE ADDED A SHORT COUNTERDESIGNATION, AND WE ARE



         9  PLAYING THAT AS PART OF THIS, YOUR HONOR.



        10           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.



        11           (VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION EXCERPT:)



        12                "BY MR. COVE:



        13                QUESTION:  OKAY.  AND DO YOU HAVE ANY MEMORY



        14           OF WHAT YOU WERE REFERRING TO WHEN YOU WROTE,



        15           UNIX BIG FLAP, MS WANTS LOTS OF UNIX'S?



        16                ANSWER:  I DON'T REMEMBER SPECIFICALLY.



        17                QUESTION:  IS IT SOMETHING THAT COULD HAVE



        18           BEEN EXPRESSED AT THE MEETING--STRIKE THAT.



        19                LET ME GO DOWN TO ISSUES AND READ THIS FOR



        20           THE RECORD.  `MS VERY SENSITIVE TO WHAT INTEL



        21           MIGHT DO ON THE CLIENT SIDE.  EXAMPLE:  JAVA, A



        22           SHOW STOPPER.  (LATER STORK PLAYED BACK, YOU ARE



        23           DOING JAVA.)'



        24                ANSWER:  WHAT PAGE ARE YOU ON?



        25                QUESTION:  I'M SORRY, THE SAME PAGE, RIGHT�
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         1           UNDER `ISSUES.'



         2                ANSWER:  OH, OKAY.



         3                QUESTION:  DO YOU REMEMBER ANY



         4           REPRESENTATIVE OF MICROSOFT EXPRESSING ANY



         5           CONCERN ABOUT INTEL'S ACTIVITIES WITH REGARD TO



         6           JAVA AT THIS MEETING?



         7                ANSWER:  I DON'T RECALL THE CONVERSATION



         8           BEYOND WHAT, YOU KNOW, I HAVE KIND OF SUMMARIZED



         9           HERE.  I WOULD REALLY BE, YOU KNOW, REINVENTING



        10           WHAT I REMEMBER.  I DON'T REMEMBER BEYOND WHAT IS



        11           STATED HERE.



        12                QUESTION:  OKAY.  BUT AT THE TIME, DID YOU



        13           INTEND FOR THIS TO BE AN ACCURATE SUMMARY OF WHAT



        14           MICROSOFT EXPRESSED AT THE MEETING?



        15                ANSWER:  YES.



        16                QUESTION:  AT ANY TIME, DID MICROSOFT--DID



        17           YOU DISCUSS YOUR JAVA EFFORTS WITH MICROSOFT?



        18                MR. EDELMAN:  OBJECT TO THE FORM.



        19                THE WITNESS:  I THINK THE QUESTION IS--I DID



        20           NOT CERTAINLY.  OTHER PEOPLE AT INTEL, I BELIEVE,



        21           DID.



        22                BY MR. COVE:



        23                QUESTION:  WHO WAS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE JAVA



        24           AT INTEL IN THE 1995 TIME FRAME?



        25                ANSWER:  STEVE MCGEADY AND, ULTIMATELY,�
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         1           FRANK GILL.



         2                QUESTION:  LET ME READ THE NEXT ITEM UNDER



         3           THAT FOR THE RECORD.  `BG.'



         4                FIRST OF ALL, WHEN YOU WERE WRITING THIS



         5           DOCUMENT, TO WHOM DID YOU REFER WHEN YOU USED THE



         6           INITIALS `BG'?



         7                ANSWER:  BILL GATES.



         8                QUESTION:  AND JUST SO THE RECORD IS CLEAR,



         9           WHEN YOU USED `MS,' DID THAT ALSO--DID THAT REFER



        10           TO MICROSOFT?



        11                ANSWER:  YES, IT DID.



        12                QUESTION:  LET ME READ THIS FOR THE RECORD,



        13           `BG SUPPORTING CERTAIN UNDERLYING THIRD-PARTY



        14           DEALS WILL BE A PROBLEM.  WE NEED TO CONSIDER IT



        15           IN THE CONTEXT OF THEIR PERVASIVE INTERNET



        16           PROGRAM TO ASSURE WE ARE NOT UNKNOWINGLY STEPPING



        17           ON ONE OF THEIR KEY STRATEGIES,' EXCLAMATION



        18           POINT.



        19                DO YOU REMEMBER WHAT MR. GATES SAID ON THIS



        20           POINT?



        21                ANSWER:  NOT BEYOND WHAT I WROTE, AND I GET



        22           MORE OUT OF READING THE DOCUMENT IN REFRESHING MY



        23           MEMORY THAN ANYTHING ELSE.  AND IT DOESN'T LEAD



        24           ME TO REMEMBER OTHER THINGS ABOUT THAT



        25           DISCUSSION.�
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         1                QUESTION:  DID YOU REMEMBER THAT HE MADE



         2           THIS STATEMENT THAT IS SET FORTH THERE THAT I



         3           JUST READ?



         4                MR. EDELMAN:  OBJECT TO THE FORM.



         5                ANSWER:  NOT REALLY.  I DON'T REMEMBER THAT,



         6           BUT IF I WROTE IT DOWN, THEN I DID TRY TO CAPTURE



         7           WHAT WAS GOING ON IN THE MEETING."



         8           MR. BOIES:  MAY I HAVE JUST A MOMENT, YOUR HONOR?



         9           THE COURT:  SURE.



        10           (PAUSE.)



        11  BY MR. BOIES:



        12  Q.   NOW, MR. MCGEADY, LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT



        13  EXHIBIT 279, PAGE TWO.  WE HAVE BEEN LOOKING AT PAGE ONE.



        14  AND IN PARTICULAR, I WOULD LIKE YOU TO LOOK AT THE VERY



        15  LAST PARAGRAPH AT THE BOTTOM OF THE PAGE, WHICH WAS THE



        16  PARAGRAPH THAT MR. WHITTIER WAS BEING EXAMINED ABOUT.



        17           NOW, MR. HOLLEY PLAYED YOU SOME TESTIMONY FROM



        18  MR. WHITTIER IN WHICH MR. WHITTIER SAID HE DIDN'T REMEMBER



        19  MICROSOFT TRYING TO DISCOURAGE INTEL FROM WORKING WITH



        20  NETSCAPE.  DO YOU RECALL THAT?



        21  A.   YES, I RECALL THE QUESTIONING.



        22  Q.   AND YOU JUST HEARD MR. WHITTIER TESTIFY HE JUST



        23  DIDN'T REMEMBER CERTAIN THINGS FROM THE AUGUST 2 MEETING?



        24  A.   YES.



        25           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, I OBJECT TO THIS LINE OF�
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         1  QUESTIONING.  IT SOUNDS MORE LIKE CLOSING ARGUMENT THAN



         2  CROSS-EXAMINATION.  IT'S EXTREMELY LEADING.



         3           THE COURT:  OVERRULED.



         4  BY MR. BOIES:



         5  Q.   LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO WHERE MR. GATES IS



         6  SAID TO HAVE SAID, "ON THE 30/70 USE OF THIRD-PARTY



         7  TECHNOLOGIES, INTEL USING NETSCAPE IN A WINDOWS



         8  ENVIRONMENT IS NOT A PROBLEM, PROVIDED WE DO NOT SET UP



         9  THE POSITIVE FEEDBACK LOOP FOR NETSCAPE THAT ALLOWS IT TO



        10  GROW TO DE FACTO STANDARD."



        11           DO YOU SEE THAT?



        12  A.   YES, I DO.



        13  Q.   AND DID YOU RECEIVE A COPY OF THIS MEMORANDUM AT THE



        14  TIME IT WAS WRITTEN?



        15  A.   YES, I DID.



        16  Q.   AND DID YOU HAVE AN UNDERSTANDING BASED ON READING



        17  THIS MEMORANDUM AND BASED ON YOUR PERSONAL PARTICIPATION



        18  IN THE MEETING ON AUGUST 2, WHAT MR. WHITTIER WAS



        19  REFERRING TO HERE?



        20  A.   YES.  I BELIEVE--I THOUGHT I TESTIFIED TO IT EARLIER.



        21  THE FIRST COMMENT REFERRED THE 30/70 USE OF THIRD-PARTY



        22  TECHNOLOGY IS A REFERENCE TO MR. GATES'S DESIRE THAT WE



        23  CONCENTRATE 70 PERCENT OF OUR RESOURCES ON WORKING WITH



        24  MICROSOFT'S TECHNOLOGY AND 30 PERCENT ON ANY THIRD



        25  PARTIES'.�
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         1           HE GOES ON TO SUGGEST THAT IF WE JUST RUN



         2  WINDOWS--EXCUSE ME--IF WE RUN NETSCAPE AS LONG AS WE RUN



         3  IT ON WINDOWS, HE DOESN'T HAVE A PARTICULAR PROBLEM WITH



         4  NETSCAPE AS AN APPLICATION, BUT HE DIDN'T WANT US TO DO



         5  ANYTHING THAT WOULD ENCOURAGE DEVELOPERS TO BEGIN TO MOVE



         6  TO NETSCAPE, THEREBY INCREASING THE VALUE OF THAT PLATFORM



         7  TO CREATE THIS POSITIVE FEEDBACK LOOP, THIS



         8  INCREASING-RETURNS KIND OF SITUATION WITH NETSCAPE.  HE



         9  SAID THAT VERY CLEARLY.



        10  Q.   WHAT SIGNIFICANCE, IF ANY, DOES THIS HAVE TO THE



        11  QUESTION OF WHETHER OR NOT MICROSOFT WAS ATTEMPTING TO



        12  INFLUENCE INTEL AS TO WHETHER OR NOT INTEL WOULD DEAL WITH



        13  NETSCAPE IN ANY WAY?



        14  A.   WELL, IT WAS VERY CLEAR THAT BILL DID NOT WANT US



        15  DOING ANY DEVELOPMENT OR TECHNOLOGY WORK WITH NETSCAPE



        16  THAT WOULD IMPROVE THE MARKET--THE VIABILITY OF NETSCAPE



        17  NAVIGATOR IN THE MARKETPLACE.  THEY WANTED US TO, IF WE



        18  ABSOLUTELY HAD TO, USE IT JUST AS A STAND-ALONE PRODUCT.



        19  HE WOULD ACQUIESCE TO THAT, BUT HE DIDN'T WANT US DOING



        20  ANY TECHNICAL WORK WITH THEM.



        21  Q.   LET ME GO NEXT TO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 566.  AND IN



        22  PARTICULAR, THE THREE LINES THAT BEGIN NINE LINES FROM THE



        23  BOTTOM OF THE PAGE WHERE IT SAYS, "MUGLIA/LUDWIG WANT



        24  EXCLUSIVE ACCESS TO IA'S VM WORK."



        25           DO YOU SEE THAT?�
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         1  A.   YES, I DO.



         2           MR. HOLLEY:  I OBJECT.  THIS IS CUMULATIVE OF THE



         3  DIRECT EXAMINATION OF THIS WITNESS.



         4           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, IF I CAN, I THINK THIS



         5  GOES DIRECTLY TO THE POINT THAT MR. HOLLEY REPRESENTED ON



         6  CROSS-EXAMINATION THAT THERE WAS NO EFFORT TO CONVINCE



         7  INTEL NOT TO WORK WITH NETSCAPE.  AND I THINK THIS GOES



         8  DIRECTLY TO THE QUESTION THAT HE RAISED.



         9           THE COURT:  WHAT WAS YOUR OBJECTION, MR. HOLLEY?



        10           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, THIS PRECISE PARAGRAPH



        11  WAS THE SUBJECT OF A SERIES OF QUESTIONS ON THE ORIGINAL



        12  DIRECT EXAMINATION OF THIS WITNESS.



        13           THE COURT:  I THINK IT WAS ALSO A SUBJECT ON



        14  CROSS-EXAMINATION.



        15           MR. HOLLEY:  NOT THIS DOCUMENT, YOUR HONOR, NOT



        16  THIS SUBJECT.



        17           THE COURT:  THE PHRASE "VERY TOUCHY WITH MS"?  I



        18  SEEM TO REMEMBER A FEW OF YOUR QUESTIONS HAVING TO DO WITH



        19  THAT PHRASE.



        20           MR. HOLLEY:  THAT GENERAL SUBJECT, YOUR HONOR, I



        21  WOULD AGREE, BUT THE SUBJECT OF VIRTUAL MACHINES I DID NOT



        22  ADDRESS ON MY CROSS-EXAMINATION.



        23           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  I'M GOING TO OVERRULE THE



        24  OBJECTION.



        25           GO AHEAD.�
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         1  BY MR. BOIES:



         2  Q.   LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THE PORTION WHERE IT



         3  SAYS, "MUGLIA/LUDWIG," WHO YOU HAVE IDENTIFIED PREVIOUSLY



         4  AS BEING MICROSOFT PERSONNEL, "WANT EXCLUSIVE ACCESS TO



         5  IA'S VIRTUAL MACHINE WORK.  LUDWIG DOES NOT"--"NOT" IS ALL



         6  CAPS--"WANT US TO GIVE NETSCAPE OUR VIRTUAL MACHINE WORK.



         7  NETSCAPE ACCESS TO VIRTUAL MACHINE IS VERY TOUCHY WITH



         8  MICROSOFT."



         9           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?



        10  A.   YES, I DO.



        11  Q.   NOW, FIRST, THIS WAS WRITTEN BY MR. ALAN HOLZMAN; IS



        12  THAT CORRECT?



        13  A.   YES, IT WAS.



        14  Q.   AND WHAT WAS MR. HOLZMAN'S POSITION AT THAT TIME?



        15  A.   ALAN WAS SORT OF THE SECOND PERSON IN CHARGE OF OUR



        16  OVERALL JOB OF MARKETING RELATIONSHIP UNDER BARBARA



        17  DAWSON.



        18  Q.   AND WHAT SIGNIFICANCE, IF ANY, DOES THIS HAVE TO THE



        19  QUESTION RAISED WITH YOU BY MR. HOLLEY AS TO WHETHER



        20  MICROSOFT MADE AN EFFORT TO CONVINCE INTEL NOT TO WORK



        21  WITH NETSCAPE?



        22  A.   WELL, THIS IS ONE COMPONENT OF MICROSOFT'S REPEATED



        23  AND SUSTAINED EFFORTS TO CONVINCE US OR DISSUADE OR



        24  CONVINCE US NOT TO WORK WITH NETSCAPE, TO DISSUADE US FROM



        25  TRANSFERRING ANY OF IAL'S TECHNOLOGY TO NETSCAPE; AND IN�
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         1  PARTICULAR IN THIS CASE, THE JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE, WHICH



         2  IS THE KEY PERFORMANCE COMPONENT OF THE JAVA SYSTEM.



         3  Q.   DID YOU TELL MR. HOLZMAN TO WRITE THIS, OR DID YOU



         4  ASK MR. HOLZMAN TO WRITE THIS?



         5  A.   NO, I DID NOT.



         6  Q.   LET ME GO BACK TO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 279 AND, IN



         7  PARTICULAR, THE THIRD PAGE OF THIS EXHIBIT.  THIS IS



         8  MR. WHITTIER'S MEMORANDUM OF THE AUGUST 2, 1995, MEETING.



         9  AND PARTICULARLY, LET ME GO TO THE FIRST TWO PARAGRAPHS OF



        10  THAT ALL THE WAY DOWN TO THE NEXT SERIES OF BULLETS.



        11           AND MR. MCGEADY, UNDER THE QUESTION, "WHAT SHOULD



        12  INTEL DO WITH ITS INTERNET RESOURCES," WRITES, "BG: GO DO



        13  A HIGH-END WEB SERVER, SUPER DUPER SERVER.  THIS COULD BE



        14  TIED TO THEIR TIGER PROGRAM OR WE COULD GO CLIMB A



        15  MOUNTAIN."



        16           WHAT, IF ANYTHING, DOES THAT HAVE TO DO WITH THE



        17  QUESTION RAISED WITH YOU BY MR. HOLLEY AS TO WHETHER



        18  MICROSOFT DID ANYTHING TO DISCOURAGE INTEL FROM WORKING



        19  WITH NETSCAPE?



        20  A.   WELL, THIS SORT OF--COULD BE INTERPRETED IN SEVERAL



        21  DAYS OR PROBABLY HAS SEVERAL VALID INTERPRETATIONS.  ONE



        22  IS THAT THEY SUGGESTED WE DO A HIGH-END--A VERY HIGH-END



        23  WEB SERVER, WHICH, AT THIS TIME IN THE MARKETPLACE,



        24  WOULDN'T HAVE HAD A VERY BROAD CUSTOMER BASE; POSSIBLY IT



        25  WOULD HAVE LATER.  AND PERHAPS--AND HE IS THEN SUGGESTING�
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         1  IT COULD BE TIED TO TIGER.  TIGER WAS A CODE NAME FOR A



         2  PROGRAM INSIDE MICROSOFT TO LINK TOGETHER MANY DIFFERENT



         3  COMPUTERS IN A MULTIPROCESSOR CONFIGURATION.  INTEL HAD A



         4  SUPERCOMPUTER DIVISION AT THE TIME WHICH MADE EXTREMELY



         5  HIGH-END COMPUTERS FOR THE DEFENSE INDUSTRY AND OTHERS,



         6  AND THE SUGGESTION WAS THAT INTEL TAKE SOME OF THAT



         7  TECHNOLOGY, WHICH WE WERE WORKING WITH IN ALLIANCE WITH



         8  MICROSOFT ON TIGER, AND PUT A WEB SERVER ON TOP OF THAT.



         9  I THINK THAT WOULD HAVE PROBABLY--GIVEN THE LINKAGE



        10  BETWEEN US AND MICROSOFT ON THE TIGER PROGRAM, THAT



        11  PROBABLY WOULD HAVE PRECLUDED US FROM USING ANYONE'S WEB



        12  SERVER OTHER THAN MICROSOFT'S.



        13           THE COURT:  IS "HIGH END" A SYNONYM FOR "COMPLEX



        14  TECHNOLOGY"?



        15           THE WITNESS:  BOTH COMPLEX, VERY EXPENSIVE, AND



        16  EXTREMELY HIGH PERFORMANCE.



        17           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.



        18  BY MR. BOIES:



        19  Q.   LET ME GO TO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 289.  AND IN



        20  PARTICULAR, I WOULD LIKE TO BLOW UP THE LAST POINT.  THIS



        21  IS A MEMORANDUM THAT'S PREVIOUSLY BEEN USED FROM BILL



        22  GATES TO PAUL MARITZ, DATED JUNE 9, 1996, FOLLOWING A



        23  TWO-AND-A-HALF-HOUR MEETING THAT MR. GATES HAD WITH



        24  MR. GROVE.



        25           AND ON THE SUBJECT OF THE BROWSER, MR. GATES�
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         1  WRITES THAT HE THANKED MR. GROVE FOR PUSHING INTEL'S WEB



         2  PEOPLE IN MICROSOFT'S DIRECTION, QUOTE, I SAID IT WAS



         3  IMPORTANT TO US THAT THEY NOT--AGAIN, MR. GATES



         4  CAPITALIZED EACH LETTER IN THE WORD "NOT"--EVER PUBLICLY



         5  SAY THEY ARE STANDARDIZING ON NETSCAPE BROWSERS.



         6           WHAT, IF ANYTHING, DOES THIS HAVE TO DO WITH THE



         7  QUESTION RAISED WITH YOU BY MR. HOLLEY AS TO WHETHER OR



         8  NOT MICROSOFT EVER DID ANYTHING TO DISCOURAGE INTEL FROM



         9  WORKING WITH NETSCAPE?



        10  A.   WELL, THIS WAS PROBABLY--THIS WOULD PROBABLY GO TO



        11  THE COMMENT ABOUT NOT CREATING A POSITIVE FEEDBACK LOOP.



        12  THEY DIDN'T WANT INTEL, IN A SENSE, ENDORSING NETSCAPE'S



        13  BROWSER AND BY SAYING PUBLICLY THAT WE WERE USING IT



        14  INTERNALLY.



        15  Q.   NOW, MR. HOLLEY ASKED YOU SOME QUESTIONS ABOUT



        16  INTERNET IN A BOX, AND HE ASKED YOU WHETHER IT WAS CORRECT



        17  THAT MICROSOFT'S ONLY REACTION TO A DECISION BY INTEL TO



        18  INCLUDE NETSCAPE WAS ONE OF DISAPPOINTMENT.  DO YOU RECALL



        19  THAT?



        20  A.   YES, I RECALL THAT.



        21  Q.   AND YOU SAID THAT WAS NOT CORRECT, AND YOU INDICATED



        22  THAT YOU COULD EXPLAIN WHAT YOU MEANT BY THAT IF YOU



        23  WANTED.  HE DIDN'T.  I DO.  WOULD YOU EXPLAIN IT, PLEASE.



        24  A.   AT ABOUT THE TIME OF, IN FACT, THIS MEMO LATER, IN



        25  THE FIRST PART OF 1996, THAT PRODUCT, WHICH MIKE MAERZ,�
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         1  M-A-E-R-Z, WHO IS THE HEAD OF THE INTERNET PRODUCTS



         2  DIVISION, WAS SCHEDULED TO BRING TO THE MARKET AT THE VERY



         3  LAST MINUTE, THERE WAS A DECISION MADE BY FRANK GILL TO



         4  NOT SHIP THAT PRODUCT BASED ON NETSCAPE'S SERVER, WEB



         5  SERVER PRODUCT; BUT INSTEAD, TO SEND THE PRODUCT BACK INTO



         6  ENGINEERING AND REENGINEER IT AROUND MICROSOFT'S SERVER



         7  PRODUCT.  I KNOW THIS ONLY BECAUSE MR. MAERZ TOLD ME THAT



         8  THAT HAD BEEN THE CASE.



         9           IT WAS MY INFERENCE, AND MY INFERENCE ONLY, THAT



        10  THAT WAS, IN FACT, THE RESULT OF PRESSURE FROM MICROSOFT.



        11  Q.   AND WHAT WAS THAT INFERENCE BASED ON?



        12  A.   THE CONVERSATION WITH MIKE MAERZ AND THE TOTALITY OF



        13  MY UNDERSTANDING OF OUR RELATIONSHIP WITH MICROSOFT.  I



        14  KNEW THAT FRANK, IN PARTICULAR, WAS VERY SENSITIVE TO



        15  MAINTAINING A POSITIVE RELATIONSHIP WITH MICROSOFT, AND



        16  FRANK WAS NOT OVERLY ENTHUSIASTIC ABOUT THIS PRODUCT TO



        17  BEGIN WITH, SO ITS DELAY IN REACHING MARKET PROBABLY



        18  DIDN'T SEEM TO HIM TO BE A BIG ISSUE.



        19  Q.   HAD YOU DONE ANY TECHNICAL STUDIES OR COMPARISONS?



        20  A.   YES, MY GROUP HAD DONE A PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS OF THE



        21  MICROSOFT SERVER AND THE NETSCAPE SERVER IN THE SECOND



        22  HALF, PROBABLY IN THE THIRD QUARTER OF 1995.



        23  Q.   AND WHAT HAD YOU CONCLUDED?



        24  A.   AT THAT TIME, OUR STUDIES INDICATED THAT THE



        25  NETSCAPE, AT LEAST IN OUR CONFIGURATIONS, THAT NETSCAPE'S�
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         1  SERVER WAS SUBSTANTIALLY FASTER ON INTEL HARDWARE THAN THE



         2  MICROSOFT SERVER WAS.



         3  Q.   MR. HOLLEY ALSO ASKED YOU SOME QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR



         4  TESTIMONY THAT MICROSOFT HAD DISCUSSED THEIR INTERNET



         5  PLANS IN THE CONTEXT OF THE PHRASE "EMBRACE, EXTEND AND



         6  EXTINGUISH."  DO YOU REMEMBER THAT?



         7  A.   YES, I DO.



         8  Q.   AND DO YOU RECALL HIM SUGGESTING THAT YOU HAD SIMPLY



         9  MADE UP OR EMBELLISHED THE WORD "EXTINGUISH"?



        10  A.   YES, HE MADE THAT ACCUSATION.



        11  Q.   I WOULD LIKE TO SHOW YOU SOME ADDITIONAL TESTIMONY



        12  FROM MR. WHITTIER AND THEN ASK YOU SOME QUESTIONS ABOUT



        13  IT.



        14           (VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION EXCERPT:)



        15                "BY MR. COVE:



        16                QUESTION:  DID YOU EVER HEAR ANYONE FROM



        17           MICROSOFT EXPRESS ANY VARIATION ON THE THEME OF



        18           "EMBRACE AND EXTEND"?



        19                MR. EDELMAN:  OBJECT TO THE FORM.



        20                THE WITNESS:  YES.



        21                BY MR. COVE:



        22                QUESTION:  WHAT--WHO SAID WHAT IN THAT



        23           REGARD?



        24                ANSWER:  I DON'T REMEMBER WHO SAID WHAT.  I



        25           DO KNOW THAT I HAVE A CLEAR RECOLLECTION OF�
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         1           `EMBRACE AND SMOTHER.'



         2                QUESTION:  BEING SAID BY A MICROSOFT--



         3                ANSWER:  I DON'T KNOW WHO, AGAIN.  WE DEALT



         4           WITH A NUMBER OF PEOPLE FROM MICROSOFT, AND I'M



         5           NOT SURE WHO SAID IT.  AND I CERTAINLY WOULD NOT



         6           ATTRIBUTE IT TO PAUL BECAUSE I DON'T KNOW THAT HE



         7           SAID IT OR ANYONE ELSE SAID IT.



         8                I JUST KNOW THAT SOMEPLACE WITHIN THAT SEA



         9           OF MICROSOFT PEOPLE THAT WE INTERFACED WITH, THAT



        10           THAT EXPRESSION WAS USED.



        11                QUESTION:  IN WHAT CONTEXT?



        12                ANSWER:  PRIMARILY IN MOVING TOWARDS



        13           INTERNET APPLICATIONS.



        14                QUESTION:  AND SPECIFICALLY, WHAT DID THEY



        15           EXPRESS THAT THEY MEANT BY THAT?



        16                ANSWER:  WELL, I DON'T KNOW WHAT THEY MEANT



        17           BY IT.  I MEAN--



        18                QUESTION:  WHAT DID YOU UNDERSTAND IT TO



        19           MEAN?



        20                MR. EDELMAN:  OBJECTION.  LACK OF



        21           FOUNDATION.



        22                THE WITNESS:  I'M NOT SURE.  CAN YOU ASK ME



        23           IN A SLIGHTLY DIFFERENT WAY?



        24                YOU KNOW, I MEAN, I CERTAINLY HAD AN



        25           INTERNAL INTERPRETATION OF IT.  I DON'T THINK I�
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         1           DISCUSSED IT AROUND.  BUT IT WAS, YOU KNOW, TO



         2           EMBRACE THIS THING AND SMOTHER COMPETITION."



         3                (PAUSE.)



         4                "BY MR. EDELMAN:



         5                QUESTION:  WHO AT MICROSOFT MADE THAT



         6           STATEMENT, BUT YOU HAVE SOME RECOLLECTION OF



         7           SOMEONE, AT LEAST ONE PERSON, SAYING THAT.  DO



         8           YOU REMEMBER THAT?



         9                ANSWER:  YES, I DO.



        10                QUESTION:  OKAY.  DO YOU KNOW WHETHER THAT



        11           PERSON WHO MADE THAT REFERENCE TO YOU WAS



        12           SPEAKING ON BEHALF OF MICROSOFT OR EXPRESSING A



        13           PERSONAL VIEW?



        14                ANSWER:  I DON'T KNOW.



        15                QUESTION:  AND IN THE TESTIMONY ABOUT THAT



        16           REFERENCE, THE `EMBRACE AND SMOTHER' REFERENCE



        17           HERE THIS AFTERNOON--



        18                ANSWER:  YES.



        19                QUESTION:  --I BELIEVE YOU GAVE WHAT YOU



        20           CHARACTERIZED AS AN INTERNAL INTERPRETATION.  DO



        21           YOU RECALL THAT TESTIMONY?



        22                ANSWER:  YES.



        23                QUESTION:  AM I CORRECT IN UNDERSTANDING



        24           THAT BY THAT, YOU MEAN THIS IS YOUR



        25           INTERPRETATION OF THE STATEMENT?�
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         1                ANSWER:  NO.  I MEAN, THE DISCUSSION OF THAT



         2           WHOLE ISSUE IN TERMS OF MICROSOFT EXPRESSED, YOU



         3           KNOW, "EMBRACE AND EXTEND" OR "EMBRACE AND



         4           SMOTHER" WAS, YOU KNOW, INTERPRETED INTERNALLY AS



         5           MEANING THAT THEY'RE GOING TO DO--MICROSOFT WOULD



         6           DO WHATEVER IT HAS TO DO TO WIN THE BROWSER WAR.



         7                QUESTION:  WHAT I'M TRYING TO UNDERSTAND IS



         8           THE REFERENCE TO `INTERNAL' IN THAT STATEMENT.



         9                ANSWER:  INTERNALLY.



        10                QUESTION:  I JUST WHAT TO KNOW WHAT YOU MEAN



        11           WHEN YOU MEAN `INTERNALLY,' WHAT DO YOU MEAN?



        12           WHOSE INTERPRETATION?



        13                ANSWER:  I MEAN INTERNALLY IT WOULD BE



        14           KINNIE, SULLIVAN, WHITTIER, MCGEADY, THE PEOPLE



        15           WHO WERE IN THE BEST POSITION TO EVALUATE AND



        16           INTERPRET WHAT, YOU KNOW, MICROSOFT WAS TALKING



        17           ABOUT IN TERMS OF THAT STRATEGY.



        18                QUESTION:  OKAY.  SO, BY INTERNALLY, YOU ARE



        19           REFERRING TO INTEL?



        20                ANSWER:  YEAH.



        21                QUESTION:  AS OPPOSED TO MICROSOFT?



        22                ANSWER:  YEAH.  I HAD NO IDEA WHAT WAS GOING



        23           ON AT MICROSOFT, THAT'S RIGHT.



        24                QUESTION:  THAT'S WHAT I WAS GETTING AT,



        25           THANK YOU."�

                                                           31



         1  BY MR. BOIES:



         2  Q.   NOW, MR. MCGEADY, DO YOU RECALL DISCUSSIONS WITHIN



         3  INTEL ABOUT THE LANGUAGE USED BY MR. WHITTIER IN HIS



         4  TESTIMONY ABOUT "EMBRACE AND SMOTHER"?



         5  A.   I'M SURE THAT BOTH THE GENERAL THEME AND AT VARIOUS



         6  TIMES THE SPECIFIC LANGUAGE WAS DISCUSSED AT THE INTEL



         7  ARCHITECTURE LAB STAFF LEVEL.  I DON'T RECALL ANY SPECIFIC



         8  CONVERSATION.



         9  Q.   OKAY.  YOU CERTAINLY DIDN'T ASK MR. WHITTIER TO GIVE



        10  THAT TESTIMONY OR SUGGEST THAT HE MAKE THAT UP, DID YOU,



        11  SIR?



        12  A.   NO, I DID NOT.



        13  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT A DOCUMENT THAT WAS GIVEN



        14  YOU BY MR. HOLLEY, WHICH IS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1805.



        15  THIS IS A DOCUMENT WRITTEN BY FRED POLLOCK.  DO YOU RECALL



        16  THAT?



        17  A.   YES, I DO.



        18  Q.   AND MR. HOLLEY DIRECTED YOUR ATTENTION TO PAGE



        19  THREE--LET ME SEE IF I COULD GET IT FOCUSED--WHERE



        20  MR. POLLOCK SAID, "THIS IS NOT OUR PORWRT."  DO YOU SEE



        21  THAT?



        22  A.   YES, I DO.



        23  Q.   AND MR. HOLLEY ASKED YOU WHETHER IT'S REALLY POSSIBLE



        24  THAT MR. POLLOCK COULD BE WRONG ABOUT THIS.  DO YOU RECALL



        25  THAT?�
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         1  A.   YES, I DO.



         2  Q.   AS BETWEEN MR. GROVE AND MR. POLLOCK, WHO WOULD BE IN



         3  A BETTER POSITION TO KNOW WHAT INTEL'S POLICY WAS IN THIS



         4  RESPECT?



         5  A.   WELL, ANDY WOULD BE CERTAINLY THE FINAL DETERMINER OF



         6  THAT POLICY.  AND ALSO VIS-A-VIS OUR RELATIONSHIP WITH



         7  MICROSOFT, HE WOULD HAVE BEEN IN THE BEST POSITION TO KNOW



         8  AT THAT TIME.



         9  Q.   WITH RESPECT TO THIS DOCUMENT, I WOULD LIKE TO DIRECT



        10  YOUR ATTENTION TO A COUPLE OF OTHER PAGES.  FIRST, ON PAGE



        11  TWO, THE THIRD LINE WHERE IT SAYS, "WE THEN HAD ABOUT



        12  ONE-HOUR INTERLUDE OF BILL GATES BASHING IAL"--DO YOU SEE



        13  THAT?



        14  A.   YES, I DO.



        15  Q.   --AND AS YOU UNDERSTAND IT, THESE NOTES WERE PREPARED



        16  BY WHOM, SIR?



        17  A.   BY FRED POLLOCK.



        18  Q.   DID YOU PARTICIPATE, IN ANY WAY, IN PREPARING THESE



        19  NOTES?



        20  A.   NO, I DID NOT.



        21  Q.   DID YOU SUGGEST, IN ANY WAY, TO MR. POLLOCK WHAT



        22  SHOULD GO INTO THESE NOTES?



        23  A.   NO, I DID NOT.



        24  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT THE LAST PAGE.  AND IN THAT



        25  CONNECTION, MR. HOLLEY HAD ASKED YOU SOME QUESTIONS ABOUT�
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         1  WHETHER YOU WEREN'T SIMPLY MAKING UP THE IDEA THAT THERE



         2  WAS PRESSURE ON INTEL FROM MICROSOFT IN THE FORM OF



         3  THREATENING TO WITHHOLD SUPPORT FOR P7 OR MERCED.  DO YOU



         4  RECALL THAT?



         5  A.   YES, I DO.



         6  Q.   AND I WOULD LIKE TO DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THE



         7  FIRST FULL PARAGRAPH ON THIS PAGE WHERE MR. POLLOCK



         8  WRITES, "IN THE P7 CONTEXT, THE SUBJECT OF OUR 64-BIT UNIX



         9  EFFORT AROSE.  GATES WAS VERY CONCERNED THAT INTEL WAS



        10  BACK IN THE BUSINESS OF UNIFYING UNIX.  HE DOES NOT LIKE



        11  US TRYING TO UNIFY MICROSOFT'S COMPETITORS."



        12           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?



        13  A.   YES, I DO.



        14  Q.   DO YOU HAVE AN UNDERSTANDING OF WHAT MR. POLLOCK WAS



        15  REFERRING TO HERE?



        16  A.   YES.  IT WAS REFERRED TO IN A PREVIOUS DOCUMENT AS



        17  THE UNIX FLAP OR BIG FLAP REGARDING UNIX.  WE HAD, AT



        18  VARIOUS TIMES, TRIED TO WORK WITH THE VARIOUS VENDORS OF



        19  DIFFERENT INCOMPATIBLE UNIX OPERATING SYSTEMS TO SEE



        20  WHETHER OR NOT THEY COULD BE COALESCED INTO A SINGLE



        21  MULTIVENDOR COMPATIBLE OPERATING SYSTEM.  WE FELT IT WOULD



        22  BE BENEFICIAL TO US IN THE SERVER MARKETPLACE BECAUSE



        23  MICROSOFT HAD REFUSED AT THIS POINT TO DO A 64-BIT VERSION



        24  OF THEIR SERVER OPERATING SYSTEM, WINDOWS NT.  AND ALSO



        25  FOR OUR OWN REASONS, WE HAD BEEN WORKING TO CREATE A�
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         1  64-BIT VERSION OF UNIX.



         2           AND ALSO, LIKELY HAD SOME DISCUSSIONS AS TO



         3  MAKING SURE THAT THAT VERSION OF UNIX WOULD BE STANDARD



         4  ON--IN ITS IMPLEMENTATION FROM OTHER VENDORS.



         5  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO GO NEXT TO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 278.



         6  AND IN PARTICULAR, I WANT TO DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THE



         7  FOURTH PARAGRAPH, THE ONE LINE THAT SAYS, "THE MAIN



         8  PROBLEM BETWEEN US RIGHT NOW IS NSP."



         9  A.   YES, I SEE THAT.



        10  Q.   DO YOU SEE THAT?



        11  A.   YES.



        12  Q.   AND MR. GATES GOES ON, "WE ARE TRYING TO CONVINCE



        13  THEM," REFERRING TO INTEL, "TO BASICALLY NOT SHIP NSP."



        14  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.



        15  Q.   NOW, MR. HOLLEY SUGGESTED TO YOU THAT THIS WAS



        16  GRATUITOUS ADVICE FROM MICROSOFT TO INTEL WHERE MICROSOFT



        17  WAS JUST TRYING TO HELP INTEL OUT SO THAT INTEL WOULD SEE



        18  WHAT WAS IN INTEL'S OWN BEST INTEREST?



        19  A.   THAT WAS THE SUGGESTION, YES.



        20  Q.   DO YOU AGREE WITH THAT, SIR?



        21  A.   NO, I ABSOLUTELY DISAGREE.



        22  Q.   WAS THAT SUGGESTION BY MR. HOLLEY CONSISTENT WITH



        23  WHAT MICROSOFT WAS DOING AND TELLING YOU AT THE TIME?



        24  A.   WELL, IT WAS CONSISTENT NOT ONLY WITH WHAT THEY WERE



        25  SPECIFICALLY TELLING US.  THEY WERE TELLING US THAT WE�
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         1  SHOULDN'T SHIP THIS.  THEY WERE TELLING US THAT THEY



         2  COULDN'T SUPPORT IT, AND THEY WERE ALSO TELLING OUR



         3  CUSTOMERS THAT THEY WOULDN'T SUPPORT IT, AND THAT THEY



         4  SHOULD NOT SHIP--OUR CUSTOMERS SHOULDN'T SHIP THIS IN



         5  THEIR PRODUCTS EITHER.



         6  Q.   IN THAT CONNECTION, LET ME GO TO THE NEXT PAGE OF



         7  THIS EXHIBIT AND, IN PARTICULAR, TO THE NEXT-TO-LAST



         8  PARAGRAPH OF MR. GATES'S MEMO IN WHICH HE WRITES, "I



         9  BELIEVE WE WILL SEE SOMEWHAT LESS PRESSURE FROM INTEL TO



        10  SHIP NSP BROADLY THIS YEAR, BUT THEY WANT TO SHIP IT IN



        11  THE FIRST HALF OF 1996."



        12           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?



        13  A.   YES, I DO.



        14  Q.   IS THAT ACCURATE, SIR?



        15  A.   WELL, AT THIS POINT, AS WE DISCUSSED, BY THIS TIME WE



        16  WERE DISCUSSING A COMPROMISE WITH MICROSOFT THAT WOULD



        17  HAVE SHIPPED A VERSION THAT WAS COMPATIBLE WITH WINDOWS 95



        18  IN AN UPDATE RELEASE IN THE FIRST QUARTER OR THE EARLY



        19  SECOND QUARTER OF 1996.



        20  Q.   AND HE GOES ON TO SAY, "IT WILL TAKE A MAJOR EFFORT



        21  FOR US TO CONVINCE THEM TO BACK OFF FROM THIS."



        22           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?



        23  A.   YES.



        24  Q.   AND DID INTEL, IN FACT, ABSENT THE PRESSURE FROM



        25  MICROSOFT, WANT TO SHIP NSP?�
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         1  A.   YES, WE CONTINUED TO LOOK--FOR SOME TIME WE CONTINUED



         2  TO LOOK FOR A WAY TO SHIP THE OVERALL INTEGRATED VERSION



         3  OF THE NSP TECHNOLOGIES.  WE WERE NEVER ABLE TO DO THAT.



         4  Q.   NOW, LET ME FOLLOW UP ON WHAT YOU SAID IN YOUR



         5  NEXT-TO-LAST ANSWER ABOUT WHAT THEY DID WITH YOUR



         6  CUSTOMERS, WHAT MICROSOFT DID WITH YOUR CUSTOMERS, AND ASK



         7  YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 281.  IN PARTICULAR, THE



         8  PARAGRAPH THREE AT THE BOTTOM WHERE MR. GATES WRITES ON



         9  OCTOBER 18TH, "THAT INTEL FEELS WE HAVE ALL THE OEM'S ON



        10  HOLD WITH OUR NSP CHILL."



        11           DO YOU HAVE AN EXPLANATION, MR. MCGEADY, AS TO



        12  WHY, IF ALL MICROSOFT WAS DOING WAS GIVING YOU SOME



        13  GRATUITOUS ADVICE AS TO WHAT WAS BEST FOR INTEL, THERE



        14  WOULD HAVE BEEN SUCH A THING AS AN NSP CHILL?



        15  A.   WELL, NO, I CAN'T EXPLAIN THAT.  MICROSOFT



        16  CLEARLY--AND IT'S MY TESTIMONY THAT THEY AGGRESSIVELY WENT



        17  OUT TO TELL OUR CUSTOMERS NOT TO USE NSP.



        18  Q.   MR. GATES GOES ON TO WRITE, "FOR EXAMPLE, INTEL FEELS



        19  HEWLETT-PACKARD IS UNWILLING TO DO ANYTHING RELATIVE TO



        20  MMX EXPLOITATION OR THE NEW AUDIO SOFTWARE INTEL IS DOING



        21  USING WINDOWS 95, UNLESS WE, MICROSOFT, SAY IT'S OKAY."



        22           AND MR. GATES GOES ON TO WRITE, "THIS IS GOOD



        23  NEWS BECAUSE IT MEANS OEM'S ARE LISTENING TO US."



        24           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?



        25  A.   I DO SEE IT.�
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         1  Q.   AND IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH WHAT YOU BELIEVED AT THE



         2  TIME WAS HAPPENING?



         3  A.   YES.  I HADN'T SEEN THIS E-MAIL BEFORE TESTIFYING



         4  HERE, BUT THIS CERTAINLY CONFIRMS ALL OF THE



         5  UNDERSTANDINGS THAT I HAD AT THE TIME INSIDE INTEL.



         6  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 920, AND



         7  PARTICULARLY, THE THIRD PAGE OF THAT.



         8  A.   I'M SORRY, 920 IS NOT IN MY BOOK.  IT MAY TAKE ME A



         9  MOMENT TO FIND IT.



        10  Q.   I WILL GET YOU A COPY.



        11  A.   I'M SORRY, I HAVE IT HERE NOW.  I FOUND IT.



        12  Q.   AND THE PORTION I'M INTERESTED IS IN THE BOTTOM OF



        13  THE PAGE, THE NEXT-TO-LAST BULLET.



        14           THE COURT:  THIS IS IN EVIDENCE, ISN'T IT?



        15           MR. BOIES:  THIS IS IN EVIDENCE.



        16  BY MR. BOIES:



        17  Q.   AND YOU HAVE ALREADY IDENTIFIED THIS FOR THE RECORD



        18  AS SOMETHING THAT MR. KINNIE WROTE; CORRECT, SIR?



        19  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.



        20  Q.   AND MR. KINNIE WRITES ON THE THIRD PAGE, "THERE ARE



        21  MANY CULTURAL, STRATEGIC AND LEGAL ISSUES THAT CLOUD OUR



        22  RELATIONSHIP, BUT THE FUNDAMENTAL ISSUE IS THAT MICROSOFT



        23  FIRMLY BELIEVES THAT THE LARGEST DEVELOPER OF PENTIUM



        24  PROCESSOR-BASED PLATFORM HAS NO BUSINESS DEVELOPING



        25  PLATFORM-LEVEL SOFTWARE," EXCLAMATION POINT.�
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         1           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?



         2  A.   YES, I DO.



         3  Q.   DID YOU MAKE UP OR EMBELLISH THIS, SIR?



         4  A.   NO.  THESE ARE MR. KINNIE'S WORDS.  AND AGAIN, IT



         5  WOULD NOT BE IN CRAIG KINNIE'S CHARACTER TO STATE--TO



         6  OVERSTATE ANYTHING.  IF ANYTHING, HE WOULD UNDERSTATE IT.



         7  Q.   I WOULD LIKE TO NOW SHOW YOU AND OFFER PLAINTIFFS'



         8  EXHIBIT 921, WHICH, FOR THE RECORD, IS A MAY 15, 1995,



         9  MEMORANDUM FROM A MICROSOFT EXECUTIVE, AND I'M NOT GOING



        10  TO TRY TO INTERPRET THE E-MAIL ADDRESS.



        11  A.   I'M GOING TO GUESS THAT'S PAUL OSBORN, ALTHOUGH I'M



        12  NOT CERTAIN.



        13  Q.   I BELIEVE IT IS, MR. MCGEADY, BUT I DIDN'T WANT TO



        14  TRY TO DO THAT.



        15           MR. HOLLEY:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



        16           THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 921 IS ADMITTED.



        17                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 921 WAS



        18                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



        19  BY MR. BOIES:



        20  Q.   WHO IS PAUL OSBORN, MR. MCGEADY?



        21  A.   PAUL RAN THE--I DON'T REMEMBER THE TITLE OF THE



        22  ORGANIZATION, BUT IT WAS ESSENTIALLY--IT WAS A MULTIMEDIA



        23  GROUP, A MULTIMEDIA INFRASTRUCTURE GROUP, AT MICROSOFT



        24  THAT WE INTERFACED WITH QUITE A LOT.



        25  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT THE PARAGRAPH NUMBER TWO,�
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         1  WHERE MR. OSBORN WRITES, "MICROSOFT DOESN'T WANT INTEL TO



         2  BE IN THE SYSTEMS SOFTWARE BUSINESS FOR THE VERY SAME



         3  REASON.  WE DON'T WANT THE OPERATING SYSTEM TO BE A



         4  COMMODITY."



         5           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?



         6  A.   YES, I DO.



         7  Q.   NOW, MR. OSBORN HERE DOESN'T SAY THE WORD ONLY ABOUT



         8  YOUR POOR QUALITY.



         9           IS THIS CONSISTENT WITH WHAT YOU BELIEVE



        10  MICROSOFT WAS SAYING TO INTEL AT THE TIME?



        11  A.   YES.  THEY STRENUOUSLY OPPOSED OUR DEVELOPING SYSTEM



        12  SOFTWARE BECAUSE AS LONG AS THEY WERE THE--AS LONG AS THEY



        13  WERE THE PREDOMINANT SUPPLIER OF IT, THEY HAD A HAMMERLOCK



        14  ON THE REST OF THE INDUSTRY.



        15  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU NEXT TO LOOK AT WHAT I WILL MARK AS



        16  EXHIBIT 1309, GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1309, WHICH IS ANOTHER



        17  MICROSOFT INTERNAL DOCUMENT--THIS ONE I CAN INTERPRET THE



        18  E-MAIL ADDRESS FROM BECAUSE IT IS MR. PAUL MARITZ--DATED



        19  JULY 28TH, 1995.



        20           MR. HOLLEY:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



        21           THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 1309 IS ADMITTED.



        22                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1309 WAS



        23                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



        24  BY MR. BOIES:



        25  Q.   AND I WOULD LIKE TO DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THE TWO�
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         1  PARAGRAPHS OF TEXT OF MR. MARITZ'S E-MAIL, WHICH IS HEADED



         2  "POSITION ON NSP ISSUES."  DO YOU SEE THAT?



         3  A.   YES, I DO.



         4  Q.   AND HE SAYS THAT WE HAVE TO BE CAREFUL ABOUT GETTING



         5  TOO EMOTIONALLY INVESTED IN THIS.  "THEY," REFERRING TO



         6  INTEL, "HAVE GIVEN ON OUR ORIGINAL MAJOR OBJECTIONS WHICH



         7  WERE THAT THEY WERE TRYING TO ESTABLISH MIDDLEWARE API'S



         8  AND THAT THEY WERE USING NSP TO JAM ALL SORTS OF RANDOM



         9  UNRELATED STUFF.  NOW THEY ARE JUST PURVEYORS OF BIG, SLOW



        10  SOFTWARE, AND THE POSITION BELOW ALLOWS US TO JUDGE IT IN



        11  THAT LIGHT.  I HAVE GIVEN THEM THE BENEFIT OF THE DOUBT



        12  FOR THE TIME BEING, MAINLY TO GIVE SOME SUPPORT TO THOSE



        13  INSIDE INTEL WHO SUPPORT US.  WE WILL WATCH INTEL'S FEET



        14  AND MOUTHS, AND IF THE WALK/TALK IS DIFFERENT, WE WILL GO



        15  ON THE ATTACK AGAIN."



        16           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?



        17  A.   YES, I DO.



        18  Q.   NOW, WHEN MR. MARITZ TALKS ABOUT GOING ON THE ATTACK



        19  AGAIN, DO YOU HAVE AN UNDERSTANDING, BASED ON YOUR



        20  EXPERIENCE, AS TO WHAT HE IS REFERRING TO?



        21  A.   WELL, I WOULD PRESUME THAT IT WOULD BE A CONTINUATION



        22  OF BOTH THE DIRECT ATTACK ON--OR THE DIRECT ARGUMENTS WITH



        23  AND DIRECTION TO INTEL'S MANAGEMENT AND THE SIMULTANEOUS



        24  ATTACK OR TELLING OUR CUSTOMERS OR OEM CUSTOMERS NOT TO



        25  USE THE SOFTWARE.  THOSE WERE THE TWO PRONGS OF�
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         1  MICROSOFT'S STRATEGY TO DEFEAT NSP.



         2  Q.   DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO BELIEVE THAT WHEN



         3  MR. MARITZ TALKS ABOUT GOING ON THE ATTACK AGAIN, HE MEANS



         4  TO GO BACK TO GIVING YOU SOME VOLUNTARY GRATUITOUS ADVICE



         5  AS TO WHAT TO DO IN INTEL'S INTEREST?



         6  A.   WELL, PERHAPS HE WOULD POSITION IT THAT WAY, BUT IT



         7  WAS CLEAR THAT THEIR ADVICE WAS AN ATTACK THE FIRST TIME



         8  AROUND AND WOULD BE THE SECOND.



         9  Q.   LET ME TURN TO THE SUBJECT OF THE AIR SUPPLY.  AND IN



        10  THAT CONNECTION, I WOULD LIKE TO SHOW YOU AND OFFER FOUR



        11  EXHIBITS.



        12           THE FIRST EXHIBIT IS GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 71.



        13           MR. BOIES:  AND WHILE I AM PREPARED TO OFFER THE



        14  ENTIRE EXHIBIT, IF COUNSEL FOR MICROSOFT WISHES, THE ONLY



        15  PORTION THAT I NEED TO OFFER FOR MY PURPOSES IS THE FIRST



        16  THREE LINES ON PAGE FOUR OF THE EXHIBIT.



        17           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, I OBJECT TO ALL OF THESE



        18  NEWSPAPER ARTICLES BEING ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.  THEY ARE



        19  PLAINLY HEARSAY.  WE DO NOT ACCEPT THE ACCURACY OF THE



        20  QUOTATIONS CONTAINED IN THESE ARTICLES, AND THIS WITNESS



        21  IS NOT IN A POSITION TO TESTIFY WHETHER OR NOT MICROSOFT



        22  EXECUTIVES DID OR DID NOT SAY THE THINGS ATTRIBUTED TO



        23  THEM IN THESE ARTICLES.



        24           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  THE OBJECTION IS



        25  OVERRULED.  I WILL ADMIT IF FOR WHAT IT'S WORTH.�
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         1                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 71 WAS



         2                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



         3  BY MR. BOIES:



         4  Q.   AND THE THREE LINES AT THE TOP OF PAGE FOUR THAT I AM



         5  PARTICULARLY INTERESTED IN, AND THIS IS A QUOTATION OR



         6  PURPORTED QUOTATION OF MR. GATES IN THE FINANCIAL TIMES OF



         7  JUNE 1995, QUOTE, OUR BUSINESS MODEL WORKS EVEN IF ALL



         8  INTERNET SOFTWARE IS FREE, CLOSED QUOTE, SAYS MR. GATES.



         9  QUOTE, WE ARE STILL SELLING OPERATING SYSTEMS.  WHAT DOES



        10  NETSCAPE'S BUSINESS MODEL LOOK LIKE IF THAT HAPPENS?  NOT



        11  VERY GOOD, END QUOTE.



        12           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?



        13  A.   YES.



        14  Q.   IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH THE SUBSTANCE OF WHAT



        15  MR. MARITZ SAID IN YOUR PRESENCE?



        16  A.   THAT'S ESSENTIALLY A DEFINITION OF IT.



        17  Q.   DID YOU MAKE UP, IN ANY WAY, OR PARTICIPATE, IN ANY



        18  WAY, IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS FINANCIAL TIMES ARTICLE,



        19  SIR?



        20  A.   NO.



        21  Q.   I WOULD NEXT OFFER A FINANCIAL TIMES ARTICLE OF



        22  JULY 3, 1996.  AGAIN, I WOULD BE PREPARED TO OFFER



        23  ADDITIONAL PORTIONS, IF COUNSEL WISHES, BUT THE PORTION



        24  THAT I'M INTERESTED IN, AND WHICH I NOW OFFER, ARE LINES



        25  FIVE THROUGH EIGHT ON PAGE TWO.�
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         1           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, I HAVE THE SAME



         2  OBJECTION.  IT'S A HEARSAY OBJECTION.



         3           AND ALSO, HE'S ASKING THIS WITNESS TO SPECULATE



         4  ABOUT THINGS THAT MICROSOFT WITNESSES SAID OR DID NOT SAY.



         5           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  GOVERNMENT'S 83 IS A



         6  FINANCIAL TIMES ARTICLE OF JULY 3RD, 1996.



         7           AND WHAT IS YOUR QUESTION TO THE WITNESS, OR WHAT



         8  WILL BE YOUR QUESTION TO THE WITNESS?



         9           MR. BOIES:  MY QUESTION WILL BE TO DIRECT HIS



        10  ATTENTION TO THE SECOND PAGE, LINES FIVE THROUGH EIGHT,



        11  WHICH IS A QUOTATION BY MR. GATES, AND ASK HIM WHETHER



        12  THAT IS CONSISTENT WITH WHAT MR. MARITZ SAID IN THIS



        13  WITNESS'S PRESENCE.



        14           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  GOVERNMENT'S 83 IS



        15  ADMITTED.



        16                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 83 WAS



        17                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



        18  BY MR. BOIES:



        19  Q.   LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THE LINES THAT I HAVE



        20  REFERRED TO, QUOTE, OUR BUSINESS MODEL WORKS EVEN IF ALL



        21  INTERNET SOFTWARE IS FREE, CLOSED QUOTE, SAYS MR. GATES.



        22  QUOTE, WE ARE STILL SELLING OPERATING SYSTEMS, CLOSED



        23  QUOTE.  NETSCAPE, IN CONTRAST, IS DEPENDENT UPON ITS



        24  INTERNET SOFTWARE FOR PROFITS, HE POINTS OUT.



        25           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?�
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         1  A.   YES, I DO.



         2  Q.   AND HOW, IF AT ALL, DOES THAT RELATE TO WHAT YOU SAY



         3  MR. MARITZ SAID IN YOUR PRESENCE?



         4  A.   THE DEFINITION, AGAIN, OF SORT OF THE NOTION OF



         5  CUTTING OFF SOMEONE'S AIR SUPPLY IS YOU TAKE AWAY THEIR



         6  ABILITY TO GENERATE ENOUGH PROFIT TO PAY FOR THE NEXT



         7  GENERATION OF THEIR SOFTWARE.  IF THEY CAN'T FUND THE



         8  GENERATION--IF THEY CAN'T FUND THEIR BUSINESS, THEN THEY



         9  DON'T CONTINUE TO EXIST.



        10           THE COURT:  LET'S TAKE AN AFTERNOON RECESS NOW,



        11  MR. BOIES.



        12           MR. BOIES:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.



        13           (BRIEF RECESS.)



        14           MR. BOIES:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.  I WOULD LIKE



        15  TO OFFER NOW GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 103, AND OUR OFFER IS



        16  LIMITED TO THE FIRST FIVE LINES ON PAGE TWO.



        17           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, I HAVE THE SAME



        18  OBJECTION.



        19           THE COURT:  SAME OBJECTION, SAME RULING.



        20  OBJECTION IS OVERRULED.



        21           GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT 103 IS ADMITTED.



        22                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 103 WAS



        23                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



        24  BY MR. BOIES:



        25  Q.   LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THE TOP OF PAGE TWO�
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         1  WHERE FORBES QUOTES MR. BALLMER AS SAYING, QUOTE, WE ARE



         2  GIVING AWAY A PRETTY GOOD BROWSER AS PART OF THE OPERATING



         3  SYSTEM.  HOW LONG CAN THEY SURVIVE SELLING IT?



         4           DO YOU SEE THAT?



         5  A.   YES, I DO.



         6  Q.   AND IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR RECOLLECTION AND



         7  TESTIMONY AS TO WHAT MR. MARITZ TOLD YOU?



         8  A.   YES.  IT'S THE SAME POINT.  IF THEY GIVE IT AWAY FOR



         9  FREE, THEN ANYBODY TRYING TO MAKE A BUSINESS OUT OF



        10  SELLING IT ISN'T LIKELY TO BE SUCCESSFUL.



        11  Q.   MR. HOLLEY SHOWED YOU A NOTE FROM MR. GROVE, THANKING



        12  MR. GATES FOR MEETING WITH HIM AND GENERALLY MAKING NICE



        13  TO MR. GATES.



        14           DOES IT SURPRISE YOU THAT MR. GROVE WOULD WANT TO



        15  CULTIVATE GOOD RELATIONSHIPS WITH MR. GATES?



        16  A.   NO, NEITHER IN THE GENERAL CASE NOR IN THE SPECIFIC



        17  CASE.  DR. GROVE IS CAPABLE ALWAYS OF BEING VERY POLITE,



        18  STATESMAN-LIKE, AND IT DOES NOT SURPRISE ME THAT HE WOULD,



        19  IN GENERAL, TRY TO BE POLITE TO ANY OF HIS PARTNERS AND



        20  SPECIFICALLY MR. GATES.  AND IN THIS PARTICULAR SITUATION,



        21  THERE WERE A LOT OF REASONS TO SPECIFICALLY MAKE SURE THAT



        22  HE KEPT OUR RELATIONSHIP ON A POSITIVE FOOTING.



        23  Q.   I WOULD LIKE TO SHOW YOU NOW A PORTION FROM



        24  MR. SULLIVAN'S DEPOSITION AND ASK YOU SOME QUESTIONS ABOUT



        25  IT.  BUT FIRST, WOULD YOU IDENTIFY WHO MR. SULLIVAN IS.�
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         1  A.   ROB SULLIVAN WAS THE MICROSOFT ACCOUNT REPRESENTATIVE



         2  FOR INTEL DURING THE PERIOD--BEFORE A CERTAIN POINT HE WAS



         3  IN REDMOND OR THE BELLEVIEW SALES OFFICE, AND AFTER A



         4  CERTAIN POINT HE BECAME A MEMBER OF THE IAL STAFF, INTEL



         5  ARCHITECTURE LAB STAFF.  AND IN BOTH OF THOSE CAPACITIES,



         6  HE WAS THE PRIMARY PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR OUR RELATIONSHIP



         7  WITH MICROSOFT.



         8           (VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION EXCERPT:)



         9                "QUESTION:  TURNING TO EXHIBIT--SULLIVAN



        10           EXHIBIT 1 ON PAGE 11.



        11                ANSWER:  OKAY.



        12                QUESTION:  DOWN--ABOVE `NO BLACK EYES YET,'



        13           LET ME READ IT FOR THE RECORD.  IT STATES



        14           `GROVE,' APPARENTLY A QUOTE FROM MR. GROVE OR



        15           WHAT PURPORTS TO BE A QUOTE FROM MR. GROVE, `WE



        16           CAVED, INTRODUCING A WINDOWS-BASED SOFTWARE



        17           INITIATIVE THAT MICROSOFT DOESN'T SUPPORT, DOT,



        18           DOT, DOT, WELL, LIFE IS TOO SHORT FOR THAT.'



        19                DID ANYONE AT INTEL EVER EXPRESS THAT



        20           CONCEPT TO YOU?



        21                ANSWER:  WHICH?  ARE YOU REFERRING TO ONE



        22           SENTENCE OR THE OTHER?



        23                QUESTION:  WELL, YEAH, I'M SORRY, I SHOULD



        24           HAVE CLARIFIED THAT.



        25                DO YOU HAVE AN UNDERSTANDING OF WHAT IS�
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         1           MEANT BY `WE CAVED'?



         2                ANSWER:  YES.



         3                QUESTION:  WHAT DID MR. GROVE MEAN BY THAT?



         4           WHAT DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT TO MEAN?



         5                ANSWER:  WE GAVE IN.



         6                QUESTION:  WHAT DO YOU MEAN, YOU `GAVE IN'?



         7                ANSWER:  WE LET MICROSOFT HAVE THEIR WAY.



         8                QUESTION:  WHAT DO YOU MEAN BY THAT?  WHAT



         9           SPECIFICALLY--



        10                ANSWER:  WELL, OUR INTENTION WAS TO TAKE



        11           THAT PRODUCT TO MARKET, TO ENABLE PRETTY



        12           SIGNIFICANT NEW CAPABILITIES IN THE PLATFORM AND



        13           WITH THAT PRODUCT LINE.  MICROSOFT OPPOSED IT ON



        14           EVERY FRONT.



        15                NOW, OUR CORE BUSINESS IS BASED ON, YOU



        16           KNOW, TO A LARGE DEGREE A CONTINUED COOPERATION



        17           WITH MICROSOFT.  WE MADE A BUSINESS DECISION, YOU



        18           KNOW, ARE WE GOING TO CONTINUE TO TRY TO GO



        19           FORWARD AND FACE THE CONSEQUENCES, YOU KNOW.



        20                AS I SAID, IN THAT TIME FRAME, WE WERE



        21           LOOKING AT MULTIPLE BILLION-DOLLAR INVESTMENT



        22           STREAMS FOR MERCED AND FOR MMX.  YOU KNOW, THE



        23           SUCCESSFUL LAUNCH OF THOSE PRODUCTS WAS CRITICAL,



        24           YOU KNOW, INTO OUR CORE STRATEGY.  IT JUST WASN'T



        25           WORTH IT, YOU KNOW, TO TRY TO GO AND FIGHT THIS�
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         1           ISSUE.



         2                YOU KNOW, MICROSOFT MADE IT CLEAR THAT THEY



         3           DIDN'T WANT US TO DO THIS.  THEY PROPOSED THAT



         4           THEY WOULD SUPPORT MANY OF THE FUNCTIONS, YOU



         5           KNOW, IN THEIR FUTURE OPERATING SYSTEM RELEASES,



         6           WHICH MEANT US WAITING, YOU KNOW.  WE HAD



         7           PRODUCTS IN THE MARKETPLACE, YOU KNOW, WITHOUT



         8           OPERATING SYSTEMS SUPPORT, YOU KNOW, FOR SOME



         9           TIME, YOU KNOW, HAVING BORNE THE COST OF CREATING



        10           THOSE PRODUCTS.  WE GAVE IN.  AND I THINK THAT'S



        11           WHAT ANDY MEANS BY LIFE IS TOO SHORT, IF THIS IS



        12           AN ACCURATE QUOTE.



        13                QUESTION:  AND SO, WHEN YOU SAY YOU GAVE IN,



        14           YOU MEAN YOU WITHDREW NSP FROM THE MARKETPLACE?



        15                ANSWER:  THAT'S CORRECT.



        16                QUESTION:  BASED ON MICROSOFT'S CONDUCT WITH



        17           REGARD TO NSP--WITH REGARD TO--



        18                ANSWER:  IT WAS BASED ON A LOT OF THINGS,



        19           BUT THAT WAS A SIGNIFICANT FACTOR."



        20  Q.   IS THAT TESTIMONY CONSISTENT WITH YOUR VIEW AS TO



        21  WHAT HAPPENED WITH RESPECT TO NSP?



        22  A.   YES, IT IS.



        23  Q.   IN YOUR VIEW, SIR, WAS NSP WITHDRAWN BECAUSE YOU WERE



        24  CONVINCED, OR INTEL WAS CONVINCED, THAT IT WAS A BAD



        25  PRODUCT OR A POOR-QUALITY PRODUCT?�
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         1  A.   NO, IT WAS WITHDRAWN BECAUSE THE CUMULATIVE VALUE OF



         2  THE VARIOUS THREATS THAT MICROSOFT COULD BRING TO BEAR WAS



         3  A GREATER RISK THAN WE WERE WILLING TO TAKE.



         4  Q.   LET ME GO, LAST, BACK TO EXHIBIT 130 AND THE FIRST



         5  PARAGRAPH--



         6  A.   I'M SORRY, IT MAY JUST TAKE ME A MOMENT TO FIND IT.



         7           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)



         8  Q.   THIS IS A MEMORANDUM FROM PAUL MARITZ ON JULY 28TH,



         9  1995.  AND LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION PARTICULARLY TO



        10  THE SECOND SENTENCE HERE WHICH, PERHAPS, WE COULD



        11  HIGHLIGHT, WHICH SAYS THAT "INTEL HAS GIVEN UP ON OUR



        12  ORIGINAL OBJECTIONS WHICH WERE THAT THEY WERE TRYING TO



        13  ESTABLISH MIDDLEWARE API'S."



        14           DO YOU SEE THAT?



        15  A.   YES.



        16  Q.   DO YOU HAVE AN UNDERSTANDING OF WHAT IS BEING



        17  REFERRED TO HERE?



        18  A.   MIDDLEWARE WAS A TERM DEVELOPED AROUND THAT TIME TO



        19  INDICATE SOMETHING WHICH WASN'T PART--WASN'T MAYBE, PER



        20  SE, PART OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM BUT WAS IN THE MIDDLE



        21  BETWEEN DIFFERENT PARTS OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM.  AND WE



        22  WERE TRYING TO ESTABLISH AT PROGRAMMING INTERFACES API'S



        23  TO THESE PIECES OF SOFTWARE--THAT WAS THE NAME GIVEN TO



        24  THEM--TO ALLOW APPLICATIONS TO HAVE ACCESS TO THESE NEW



        25  CAPABILITIES.�
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         1           SO, MIDDLEWARE API'S REFERS TO THE EXTERNALLY



         2  AVAILABLE PROGRAMMING INTERFACES TO THE CAPABILITIES THAT



         3  WERE PROVIDED BY NATIVE SIGNAL PROCESSING SOFTWARE.



         4           DOES THAT ANSWER YOUR QUESTION?



         5           THE COURT:  SAY THAT LAST PART AGAIN.  EXTERNAL



         6  TO--



         7           THE WITNESS:  THE EXTERNAL INTERFACES, WHICH IS



         8  TO SAY THE INTERFACES VISIBLE TO AN APPLICATION DEVELOPER,



         9  THE "MIDDLEWARE API'S," THAT PHRASE REFERS TO THOSE



        10  INTERFACES THAT AN APPLICATION WRITER WOULD USE TO TAKE



        11  ADVANTAGE OF THE CAPABILITIES PRESENT IN THE NATIVE SIGNAL



        12  PROCESSING CODE.



        13  BY MR. BOIES:



        14  Q.   AND DID YOU HAVE AN UNDERSTANDING AS TO WHY MICROSOFT



        15  HAD AS A MAJOR OBJECTION TO WHAT INTEL WAS DOING, THE FACT



        16  THAT YOU WERE TRYING TO ESTABLISH MIDDLEWARE API'S?



        17  A.   IF INTEL WERE TO ESTABLISH A PIECE OF SOFTWARE ON THE



        18  PLATFORM THAT A PC MANUFACTURER HAD TO GET FROM SOMEONE



        19  OTHER THAN MICROSOFT, THAT TOE-HOLD ON THE PLATFORM



        20  REPRESENTED A THREAT THAT MICROSOFT WOULD THEN HAVE TO



        21  COOPERATE, COMPROMISE, AND ULTIMATELY MIGHT NOT BE ABLE TO



        22  STAY IN CONTROL OF HOW THAT PARTICULAR CAPABILITY OR PIECE



        23  OF SOFTWARE WOULD BE DEVELOPED IN THE FUTURE.



        24           THEY DIDN'T WANT ANYONE BUT THEMSELVES IN CHARGE



        25  OF THE TYPES OF FEATURES THAT WOULD BE DELIVERED OR THE�
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         1  TIMING OF WHEN THOSE FEATURES WOULD BE DELIVERED, AND THEY



         2  WANTED TO KEEP THAT WITHIN THEIR CONTROL.



         3  Q.   WAS THERE ANY EXTENT TO WHICH NETSCAPE'S BROWSER



         4  PROVIDED WHAT MIGHT BE REFERRED TO AS MIDDLEWARE API'S?



         5  A.   IN ESSENCE.  I'M NOT SURE THAT WE WOULD USE EXAMINE



         6  THAT TERM.  NETSCAPE'S BROWSER HAD A PLUG-IN ARCHITECTURE



         7  WHICH ALSO, IN A DIFFERENT WAY, ALLOWED OTHER APPLICATION



         8  OR APPLICATION COMPONENT WRITERS TO WRITE TO A NEW SET OF



         9  INTERFACES.  THOSE PLUG-IN INTERFACES WERE ANALOGOUS TO,



        10  IF NOT DIRECTLY COMPARABLE TO, THE MIDDLEWARE API'S.



        11  Q.   NOW, MR. MARITZ GOES ON TO SAY THAT MICROSOFT



        12  ACHIEVED ITS MAJOR OBJECTION, AND NOW INTEL IS JUST



        13  PURVEYORS OF BIG, SLOW SOFTWARE.  DO YOU SEE THAT?



        14  A.   I DO.



        15  Q.   DO YOU SEE ANYTHING THERE THAT INDICATES THAT



        16  MR. MARITZ IS CONCERNED THAT INTEL IS PURVEYING BIG, SLOW



        17  SOFTWARE OR NOT VERY GOOD SOFTWARE?



        18  A.   WELL, IT CERTAINLY WAS MR. MARITZ'S STATED POSITION.



        19  ONE WOULD IMAGINE THAT HE WOULD NOT HAVE BEEN CONCERNED IF



        20  IT WAS REALLY BIG AND SLOW.  THE MARKETPLACE SIMPLY WOULD



        21  HAVE REJECTED IT.



        22           I THINK THAT IT'S MORE LIKELY THAT HE SIMPLY



        23  MEANT THAT TO INDICATE THAT THAT'S HOW THEY WOULD



        24  REPRESENT OUR SOFTWARE TO OTHERS.



        25           MR. BOIES:  I HAVE NO MORE QUESTIONS, YOUR HONOR.�
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         1                     RECROSS-EXAMINATION



         2  BY MR. HOLLEY:



         3  Q.   MR. MCGEADY, DO YOU STILL HAVE UP THERE WITH YOU



         4  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1835?



         5  A.   YES, I DO.



         6  Q.   NOW, THIS IS A DOCUMENT THAT MICROSOFT PROVIDED TO



         7  INTEL IN JUNE OF 1995, OUTLINING A LONG SERIES OF



         8  TECHNICAL OBJECTIONS THAT MICROSOFT HAD TO THE NSP SYSTEM



         9  SOFTWARE; IS THAT CORRECT?



        10  A.   I AM NOT--I DON'T HAVE ANY PERSONAL KNOWLEDGE OF



        11  WHETHER THIS WAS PROVIDED TO INTEL OR NOT.



        12           MR. HOLLEY:  I WOULD LIKE TO OFFER AS DEFENDANT'S



        13  EXHIBIT 1837, A DOCUMENT PREPARED BY THE INTEL



        14  ARCHITECTURE LABS, ENTITLED "INTEL RESPONSE TO MICROSOFT



        15  NSP ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION," DATED JUNE 20, 1995.



        16           MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



        17           THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 1837 IS ADMITTED.



        18                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1837 WAS



        19                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



        20  BY MR. HOLLEY:



        21  Q.   MR. MCGEADY, DIRECTING YOUR ATTENTION TO THE NOTE



        22  THAT MR. KINNIE SENT TO MR. LUDWIG ON THE FAX COVER PAGE



        23  OF THIS DOCUMENT, IT SAYS, "JOHN, ATTACHED IS INTEL'S



        24  RESPONSE TO MICROSOFT'S EVALUATION OF LAST WEEK."



        25           AND THEN IF YOU TURN TO THE NEXT PAGE OF THIS�
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         1  DOCUMENT AT THE TOP, IT SAYS, "INTEL'S RESPONSE TO



         2  MICROSOFT ISP ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION DATED 6/20/95."



         3           IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING, MR. MCGEADY, THAT THIS



         4  IS A RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1835, WHICH IS BOTH



         5  ENTITLED "MICROSOFT NSP ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION" AND



         6  IS DATED JUNE 20, 1995?



         7  A.   I CAN INFER THAT FROM THE THINGS YOU HAVE JUST



         8  MENTIONED.  I HAVEN'T SEEN THIS DOCUMENT BEFORE.



         9  Q.   SO, YOU, BEFORE YOU CAME TO TESTIFY HERE THIS WEEK,



        10  DID NOT LOOK AT INTEL'S RESPONSE TO MICROSOFT'S ANALYSIS



        11  OF NSP; IS THAT CORRECT?



        12  A.   IT'S MY BELIEF THAT THIS WAS NOT IN THE PRODUCTION



        13  MATERIAL; AND THEREFORE, I WOULDN'T HAVE SEEN IT.



        14  Q.   DIRECTING YOUR ATTENTION TO THE SUMMARY SECTION ON



        15  THE SECOND PAGE OF DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1837, MR. KINNIE



        16  MAKES THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT:  "IN MAKING OUR PROPOSAL,



        17  WE WANT TO MAKE CLEAR THAT WE ARE WILLING TO WORK WITH YOU



        18  TO BRING A CONSISTENT HIGH BASELINE SET OF CAPABILITIES TO



        19  END USERS.  TO THE EXTENT THAT THIS GOAL IS SERVED BY A



        20  DELAY IN THE ROLLOUT OF OUR NATIVE AUDIO TECHNOLOGIES,



        21  WHETHER BECAUSE OF TECHNICAL ISSUES OR THE TIME NEEDED TO



        22  DEVELOP THE IMPROVED TECHNOLOGY, WE MAY DO SO."



        23           WHAT MR. KINNIE IS SAYING HERE TO MICROSOFT, IS



        24  HE NOT, MR. MCGEADY, IS THAT INTEL RECOGNIZES THAT THERE



        25  ARE BOTH TECHNICAL OBJECTIONS TO NSP SYSTEM SOFTWARE AND�
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         1  THE NEED TO DEVELOP AN IMPROVED VERSION OF THAT



         2  TECHNOLOGY?



         3  A.   MAY I HAVE A MOMENT TO READ THIS, MYSELF, BEFORE I



         4  ANSWER?



         5  Q.   CERTAINLY.  TAKE AS MUCH TIME AS YOU NEED.



         6           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)



         7  A.   YOU KNOW, ALL I SEE HAPPENING HERE IS CRAIG IS SAYING



         8  YOU MAY HAVE SOME COMPLAINTS, WE MAY OR MAY NOT AGREE WITH



         9  THEM, BUT REGARDLESS OF WHETHER WE AGREE WITH YOUR



        10  COMPLAINTS, WE ARE WILLING TO DO WHATEVER WE NEED TO DO TO



        11  FIND A COMPROMISE.  THAT'S HOW I INTERPRET THESE TWO



        12  SENTENCES.



        13  Q.   LOOK UNDER THE SECTION ON PAGE TWO ENTITLED "INTEL



        14  ACTIONS."  THE FIRST ONE IS LABELED "I1."  IT SAYS, "TO



        15  FACILITATE A SUCCESSFUL WINDOWS 95 LAUNCH AND TO ADDRESS



        16  CONCERNS ABOUT BROAD USABILITY AND STABILITY OF OUR CODE,



        17  INTEL WOULD FOCUS DISTRIBUTION OF OUR CURRENT IASPOX AND



        18  NATIVE AUDIO IMPLEMENTATIONS THROUGH ABOUT SIX OF OUR



        19  CURRENT BETA OEM'S AND THEIR SUPPLIERS IMPLEMENTING



        20  SPECIFIC IDENTIFIED CONFIGURATIONS IN THE SECOND QUARTER



        21  (SIC) OF 1995."



        22  A.   SECOND HALF OF 1995.



        23  Q.   I'M SORRY, YOU'RE EXACTLY RIGHT.



        24           IN THIS PARAGRAPH, MR. KINNIE IS ACKNOWLEDGING



        25  THAT MICROSOFT HAS CONCERNS BOTH ABOUT THE BROAD USABILITY�
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         1  AND STABILITY OF THE NSP CODE, ISN'T HE?



         2  A.   WELL, HE'S SUGGESTING THAT--I'M SURE HE'S TRYING VERY



         3  HARD TO BE POLITE TO MICROSOFT IN THIS STATEMENT.  HE'S



         4  SUGGESTING THAT WHETHER OR NOT THOSE CONCERNS ARE



         5  WELL-FOUNDED, WE WERE WILLING TO OBVIATE THEM BY FOCUSING



         6  ON VERY SPECIFIC HARDWARE CONFIGURATIONS THAT DID NOT HAVE



         7  ANY OF THE UPGRADE ISSUES OR OTHER ISSUES THAT MICROSOFT



         8  HAD BROUGHT UP.  I DON'T BELIEVE THIS GOES TO WHETHER



         9  THOSE CONCERNS WERE WELL-FOUNDED OR SPURIOUS.



        10  Q.   BUT THERE IS NO DOUBT, IS THERE, WHATSOEVER,



        11  MR. MCGEADY, THAT MICROSOFT HAD THESE CONCERNS AND VOICED



        12  THEM TO INTEL?



        13  A.   YES.



        14  Q.   NOW, LOOK AT I3 UNDER INTEL ACTIONS.  IT SAYS, "MAKE



        15  THE NEW IASPOX AND NATIVE AUDIO DRIVERS UNINSTALLABLE SO



        16  THAT THEY COULD BE UPGRADED BY FUTURE RELEASES OF WINDOWS



        17  FROM MICROSOFT."



        18           MR. KINNIE WAS SUGGESTING THAT, WAS HE NOT,



        19  BECAUSE HE ACKNOWLEDGED THAT THE IASPOX AND NATIVE AUDIO



        20  DRIVERS WERE INCOMPATIBLE WITH BOTH WINDOWS 95 AND



        21  WINDOWS NT; AND THEREFORE, THEY HAD TO BE MADE



        22  UNINSTALLABLE?



        23  A.   EVERY COMPONENT OF WINDOWS IS UNINSTALLABLE.  WELL,



        24  OTHER THAN INTERNET EXPLORER.  EVERY COMPONENT OF WINDOWS,



        25  AND YOU CAN SEE THIS IF YOU EXAMINE WINDOWS, IS�
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         1  UNINSTALLABLE.  IT'S A REQUIREMENT OF MICROSOFT'S BUILD



         2  PROCEDURES THAT WINDOWS COMPONENTS BE UNINSTALLABLE.  THIS



         3  WAS SIMPLY CONSISTENT WITH THAT.



         4           THE COURT:  IS UNINSTALLABLE BEING USED HERE AS



         5  INCAPABLE OF INSTALLATION?



         6           THE WITNESS:  NO.



         7           THE COURT:  OR IT COULD BE DISMANTLED?



         8           THE WITNESS:  I'M SORRY, YOUR HONOR.  IT MEANS



         9  THAT ONCE THEY HAVE BEEN INSTALLED, THERE IS AN EQUALLY



        10  STRAIGHTFORWARD PROCEDURE TO REMOVE THEM FROM THE SYSTEM.



        11           THE COURT:  OKAY.



        12           THE WITNESS:  SO, ALMOST EVERY COMPONENT OF



        13  WINDOWS COMES WITH A SEPARATE PROGRAM OR SOME CAPABILITY



        14  TO TAKE ITSELF OUT.



        15  BY MR. HOLLEY:



        16  Q.   THAT IS NOT TRUE, MR. MCGEADY, IS IT?  YOU CANNOT



        17  INSTALL, FOR EXAMPLE, THE FILES CALLED "USER.XE" OR GDI OR



        18  KERNL BECAUSE IF YOU DO, THE OPERATING SYSTEM WOULD BE



        19  COMPLETELY DYSFUNCTIONAL; ISN'T THAT RIGHT?



        20  A.   WELL, THE OPERATING SYSTEM IS DEFINED, FOR ALL



        21  INTENTS AND PURPOSES, AS THOSE THREE MODULES.  THEY ARE



        22  THE THREE CENTRAL MODULES OF THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM.



        23           MR. HOLLEY:  I WOULD LIKE TO OFFER AS DEFENDANT'S



        24  EXHIBIT 1836, A MEMORANDUM TO MR. GATES, A COPY TO



        25  MR. SILVERBERG, WRITTEN BY MR. STORK, DATED--WELL, NOT�

                                                           57



         1  DATED--THERE IS A DATE ON THE FOURTH PAGE, YOUR HONOR, OF



         2  THESE EMBEDDED E-MAIL MESSAGES OF MONDAY, JULY 3, 1995.



         3           MR. BOIES:  CAN I INQUIRE OF THE COURT WHO WROTE



         4  THIS AT THE TIME?  SOMETHING IS CROSSED OUT AND I CAN'T



         5  READ IT.



         6           MR. HOLLEY:  WHAT'S CROSSED OUT, YOUR HONOR, IS



         7  BRIAN FLEMING.  THE WAY THAT THE MICROSOFT EXCHANGE E-MAIL



         8  SYSTEM WORKS IS THAT THE PERSON WHOSE COMPUTER--FROM WHOSE



         9  COMPUTER A PARTICULAR E-MAIL MESSAGE IS BEING PRINTED OUT



        10  SHOWS UP AS A HEADER AT THE TOP OF THE MESSAGE.  IF IT



        11  PRINTED OUT FROM MY MACHINE, YOUR HONOR, IT WOULD SAY



        12  STEVEN HOLLEY, EVEN THOUGH I HAD NOTHING TO DO WITH THIS



        13  MESSAGE.



        14           THE HANDWRITING--



        15           THE COURT:  YOU ARE REPRESENTING THAT CARL STORK



        16  IS THE AUTHOR?



        17           MR. HOLLEY:  THAT'S CORRECT, YOUR HONOR.



        18           MR. BOIES:  CARL STORK IS THE AUTHOR OF THIS



        19  E-MAIL?



        20           MR. HOLLEY:  THAT'S CORRECT, YOUR HONOR.  MR.



        21  BOIES IS CORRECT, THAT MR. STORK IS THE AUTHOR OF THE



        22  E-MAIL THAT RUNS ON THE FIRST PAGE TO THE MIDDLE OF THE



        23  SECOND PAGE.  THEN THERE IS AN EMBEDDED MESSAGE WHICH IS A



        24  RESPONSE TO MR. KINNIE'S FACSIMILE WHICH IS DEFENDANT'S



        25  EXHIBIT 1837 WHICH RUNS TO THE MIDDLE OF THE FOURTH PAGE.�
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         1  THIS IS THEN ANOTHER E-MAIL MESSAGE FROM MR. STORK TO



         2  MR. GATES, DATED JULY 3 OF 1995.  AND FINALLY, THERE IS A



         3  MESSAGE FROM MR. GATES TO MR. STORK, DATED JULY 2, 1995,



         4  WHICH STARTS ON PAGE FIVE AND RUNS TO PAGE SIX.



         5           MR. BOIES:  I WOULD OBJECT.  I DON'T THINK THERE



         6  IS ADEQUATE FOUNDATION.  THIS IS AN INTERNAL MICROSOFT



         7  MEMORANDUM.



         8           THE COURT:  THERE ARE A LOT OF INTERNAL MICROSOFT



         9  MEMORANDA.



        10           MR. BOIES:  THAT'S TRUE, YOUR HONOR, BUT



        11  PARTICULARLY SINCE THIS DOESN'T HAVE ANYTHING TO DO WITH



        12  THIS WITNESS, IT WOULD NOT BE APPROPRIATE TO USE ON



        13  RECROSS-EXAMINATION.



        14           MR. HOLLEY:  I COULDN'T DISAGREE WITH MR. BOIES



        15  MORE.  THIS IS MR. STORK'S TALKING POINTS TO MR. GATES FOR



        16  THE MEETING IN SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA, ON THE 5TH OF JULY OF



        17  1995 ON THE SUBJECT OF NATIVE SIGNAL PROCESSING.



        18           THE COURT:  WELL, WHAT ARE YOU GOING TO ASK HIM



        19  ABOUT IT?



        20           MR. HOLLEY:  I WANT TO ASK HIM, YOUR HONOR, UNDER



        21  THE SUGGESTED KEY TALKING POINTS THAT MR. STORK MADE TO



        22  MR. GATES, ASK HIM CERTAIN QUESTIONS ABOUT THOSE, YOUR



        23  HONOR, WHICH RELATE DIRECTLY TO BOTH--



        24           THE COURT:  GOING TO HIS STATE OF MIND?  IS THAT



        25  WHAT IT IS?�
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         1           MR. HOLLEY:  YES, YOUR HONOR.



         2           THE COURT:  DO YOU AGREE?  DISAGREE?



         3           MR. HOLLEY:  YES, YOUR HONOR.



         4           THE COURT:  OBJECTION IS OVERRULED.  DEFENDANT'S



         5  EXHIBIT 1836 IS ADMITTED.



         6                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1836 WAS



         7                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



         8  BY MR. HOLLEY:



         9  Q.   NOW, DIRECTING YOUR ATTENTION TO THE FIRST PAGE OF



        10  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1836, WHICH IS MR. STORK'S SUGGESTED



        11  KEY TALKING POINTS TO MR. GATES, HE SAYS, "HERE ARE THE



        12  POINTS THAT I THINK YOU SHOULD MAKE TO GROVE DURING THE



        13  DINNER."



        14           THE SECOND POINT THERE IS THAT THE NSP REFERENCE



        15  HARDWARE PLATFORM IS FINE.  WINDOWS 95 WILL RUN ON THIS



        16  HARDWARE.



        17           AND THAT IS CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF



        18  MICROSOFT'S POSITION, ISN'T IT, THAT MICROSOFT HAD NO



        19  OBJECTION TO THE REFERENCE HARDWARE PLATFORM CALLED NSP?



        20  A.   YES, I'M NOT AWARE OF ANY OBJECTION TO THAT.



        21  Q.   OKAY.  AND THEN THE NEXT BULLET POINT SAYS, "INTEL'S



        22  NSP SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION IS TERRIBLE, AND WE WILL



        23  ACTIVELY OPPOSE IT," AND THEN HE GIVES A SERIES OF



        24  PROBLEMS THAT MICROSOFT PERCEIVES, THE FOLLOWING FIVE



        25  BULLET POINTS.�
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         1           AND THAT IS CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING,



         2  IS IT NOT, MR. MCGEADY?  WHETHER OR NOT YOU AGREED WITH



         3  WHAT MR. STORK IS SAYING, MICROSOFT BELIEVED THAT THE



         4  FOLLOWING ITEMS WERE TRUE, THAT THE NSP SYSTEMS SOFTWARE



         5  WAS BIG AND SLOW, THAT IT WAS DESIGNED TO WORK WITH



         6  WINDOWS 3.1 AS OPPOSED TO WINDOWS 95, THAT IT DID NOT



         7  SUPPORT WINDOWS NT, THAT IT PROBLEMATICALLY INTRODUCED A



         8  SECOND SCHEDULER INTO THE SYSTEM, AND THAT IT HAD A



         9  SIGNIFICANT RISK OF BUGS BECAUSE IT HAD NOT BEEN



        10  SUFFICIENTLY TESTED?



        11  A.   I HAVE NO WAY OF KNOWING WHICH OF THESE POINTS



        12  MICROSOFT BELIEVED AND WHICH OF THEM THEY WERE SIMPLY



        13  USING AS TALKING POINTS.



        14  Q.   BUT MY QUESTION TO YOU, MR. MCGEADY, IS:  THIS



        15  DOCUMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT



        16  MICROSOFT HAD THESE OBJECTIONS TO NSP SYSTEM SOFTWARE?



        17  A.   NO, I BELIEVE THAT THIS OUTLINES WHAT GATES SHOULD



        18  SAY.  IT'S OFTEN THE CASE THAT PEOPLE DON'T SAY WHAT THEY



        19  BELIEVE.



        20  Q.   MR. BOIES ASKED YOU ON REDIRECT EXAMINATION ABOUT THE



        21  NOTION OF INTEL UNIFYING MICROSOFT'S COMPETITORS IN THE



        22  SERVER SOFTWARE BUSINESS.  DO YOU RECALL THAT QUESTION?



        23  A.   YES.



        24  Q.   I WOULD LIKE TO SHOW YOU WHAT'S BEEN MARKED FOR



        25  IDENTIFICATION AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1838, WHICH IS A�
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         1  LIST OF COMMERCIALLY AVAILABLE UNIX VARIANTS.



         2           MR. HOLLEY:  AND, YOUR HONOR, I WOULD OFFER



         3  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1838.



         4           MR. BOIES:  CAN WE HAVE A REPRESENTATION OF WHAT



         5  THE FOUNDATION OF THE DOCUMENT IS?



         6           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, THIS IS A LIST PREPARED



         7  BY ME BASED ON INFORMATION CONTAINED ON WEB SITES



         8  MAINTAINED BY AN ORGANIZATION CALLED X-OPEN IN LONDON,



         9  WHICH HAS THE ABILITY, PURSUANT TO AGREEMENTS WITH THE



        10  SANTA CRUZ OPERATION, TO CERTIFY VERSIONS OF UNIX AS



        11  COMPLIANT WITH CERTAIN SPECIFICATIONS.



        12           THE COURT:  YOU JUST WANT TO ASK HIM QUESTIONS



        13  ABOUT IT, OR DO YOU WANT TO OFFER IT INTO EVIDENCE?



        14           MR. HOLLEY:  WELL, I WOULD PREFER TO OFFER IT IN



        15  EVIDENCE.  IF THE GOVERNMENT HAS AN OBJECTION ABOUT IT, I



        16  GUESS I COULD JUST ASK MR. MCGEADY QUESTIONS ABOUT IT.



        17           MR. BOIES:  I THINK AT THIS POINT WE WOULD



        18  OBJECT, YOUR HONOR.  MAYBE WE WOULD BE ABLE TO SATISFY



        19  OURSELVES IN FORMS OF CONVERSATIONS.



        20           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  I WILL RESERVE ON IT.



        21           MR. HOLLEY:  I APPRECIATE MR. BOIES'S OFFER.



        22  BY MR. HOLLEY:



        23  Q.   MR. MCGEADY, TAKING A LOOK, IF YOU WOULD, SIR, AT



        24  WHAT HAS BEEN MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION AS DEFENDANT'S



        25  EXHIBIT 1838, BASED ON YOUR YEARS OF EXPERIENCE IN THE�

                                                           62



         1  SOFTWARE INDUSTRY, ARE THESE ALL VERSIONS OF THE UNIX



         2  OPERATING SYSTEM?



         3  A.   WELL, THERE ARE MANY ON THIS LIST WITH WHICH I'M NOT



         4  FAMILIAR.  IT PURPORTS TO BE.  I HAVE NO REASON TO BELIEVE



         5  OTHERWISE.



         6  Q.   HOW MANY OF THESE 33 DIFFERENT UNIX OPERATING SYSTEMS



         7  DO YOU THINK INTEL SHOULD BE ABLE TO GET MERGED INTO ONE



         8  GIANT UNIX?



         9           THE COURT:  ASK THAT QUESTION AGAIN.



        10           THE WITNESS:  YEAH, THANK YOU.



        11           MR. HOLLEY:  I WILL TRY AGAIN, YOUR HONOR.



        12  BY MR. HOLLEY:



        13  Q.   THERE ARE 33 DIFFERENT VERSIONS OF UNIX OPERATING



        14  SYSTEMS ON THIS LIST; IS THAT CORRECT, MR. MCGEADY?



        15  A.   YES.



        16  Q.   AND IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT IT WOULD BE GOOD FOR



        17  CONSUMERS IF ALL 33 OF THESE DIFFERENT OPERATING SYSTEMS



        18  WERE MELDED TOGETHER INTO ONE VERSION OF UNIX?



        19  A.   NO, THAT IS NOT MY TESTIMONY.



        20           IN PARTICULAR--PERHAPS I SHOULD CLARIFY.  ONLY A



        21  FEW OF THESE HAVE A SIGNIFICANTLY SIZED USER BASE.  ONLY A



        22  FEW OF THESE, PROBABLY TWO OR THREE OF THESE REPRESENT IN



        23  EXCESS OF 90 PERCENT OF THE UNIX SERVER MARKET SEGMENT.



        24  Q.   AND THOSE THREE ARE AIX FROM IBM, NUMBER TWO; IS THAT



        25  CORRECT?  AND HP-UX, FROM THE HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY,�
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         1  NUMBER 14.  AND SOLARIS AND SUN-OS FROM SUN MICROSYSTEMS.



         2  ARE THOSE THE FOUR THAT YOU WOULD PICK?



         3  A.   ON THE ONE POINT IN TIME, SCO, THE SANTA CRUZ



         4  OPERATION, ALSO HAD SHARE.  SEGMENT SHARING, EXCUSE ME.  I



         5  DON'T KNOW WHETHER THEY DO ANY LONGER.



         6  Q.   AND, IN FACT, INTEL HAS SOUGHT TO GET TOGETHER IN ONE



         7  ROOM TO TALK ABOUT COLLUDING ON A VERSION OF UNIX THE IBM



         8  CORPORATION, HEWLETT-PACKARD, THE SANTA CRUZ OPERATION,



         9  AND SUN MICROSYSTEMS, HAVEN'T YOU?



        10  A.   NO, I WOULD DISAGREE WITH THAT CHARACTERIZATION.



        11  Q.   YOU HAVE CONDUCTED MEETINGS AT WHICH INTEL WAS THE



        12  HOST WHERE THOSE FOUR COMPANIES THAT YOU SAY CONTROL 90



        13  PERCENT OF THE UNIX MARKET WERE URGED TO COLLABORATE WITH



        14  ONE ANOTHER TO CREATE A SINGLE OPERATING SYSTEM; IS THAT



        15  CORRECT?



        16  A.   THAT IS NOT--I'M NOT AWARE THAT THAT IS TRUE.



        17  Q.   THERE ARE EFFORTS CURRENTLY UNDERWAY, ARE THERE NOT,



        18  MR. MCGEADY, IN ORDER TO SUPPORT THE NEW P7 OR MERCED



        19  MICROPROCESSOR AMONG THOSE FOUR COMPANIES TO CREATE A



        20  SINGLE INVESTIGATION OF 64-BIT UNIX?  YES OR NO.



        21  A.   MY UNDERSTANDING OF THIS AND OF OUR STRATEGY HERE IS



        22  THERE SHOULD BE COMPATIBLE VERSIONS OF OPERATING SYSTEMS



        23  FROM MULTIPLE VENDORS.  I DON'T KNOW HOW MANY OF THESE



        24  VENDORS WILL BE COOPERATING WITH ONE ANOTHER OR THE NATURE



        25  OF THAT COOPERATION.�
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         1  Q.   DO YOU KNOW THAT INTEL HAS BEEN ACTING AS A



         2  COORDINATOR AMONG THE SANTA CRUZ OPERATION, THE



         3  HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY, THE IBM CORPORATION, AND SUN



         4  MICROSYSTEMS ON CREATING A SINGLE VERSION OF UNIX 64-BIT



         5  FOR THE MERCED MICROPROCESSOR?



         6  A.   I AM NOT SPECIFICALLY AWARE OF THAT ACTIVITY, NO.



         7  Q.   IF THAT IS HAPPENING, DO YOU THINK THAT'S



         8  APPROPRIATE?



         9  A.   I DON'T HAVE AN OPINION BECAUSE I DON'T KNOW THAT



        10  IT'S HAPPENING, AND I DON'T HAVE A JUDGMENT ON THAT AT



        11  THIS TIME.



        12  Q.   MR. ANDREESSEN FROM NETSCAPE CAME TO VISIT YOU--



        13           THE COURT:  I'M CURIOUS.  WHAT IS THE IMPLICATION



        14  OF YOUR QUESTION?  I'M MISSING WHAT MIGHT BE INAPPROPRIATE



        15  ABOUT IT.



        16           MR. HOLLEY:  WELL, I THINK, YOUR HONOR--I DON'T



        17  MEAN TO ARGUE THINGS, BUT THE GOVERNMENT IS SUGGESTING



        18  THAT WHEN MICROSOFT TALKS TO VARIOUS COMPANIES ABOUT



        19  MAKING TECHNOLOGIES WORK TOGETHER, THAT IS SOMEHOW



        20  IMPROPER UNDER THE ANTITRUST LAWS.



        21           THE COURT:  OKAY, ALL RIGHT.  I FOLLOW YOU.



        22  BY MR. HOLLEY:



        23  Q.   MARC ANDREESSEN AND RICK SCHELL AND OTHERS FROM



        24  NETSCAPE CAME TO HAWTHORN FARMS IN SEPTEMBER OF 1995--IS



        25  THAT CORRECT?--TO VISIT YOU WITH.�
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         1  A.   YES.



         2  Q.   AND ONE OF THE THINGS THAT MR. ANDREESSEN TOLD YOU AT



         3  THAT MEETING WAS THAT NETSCAPE WAS UNHAPPY THAT INTEL WAS



         4  BUNDLING AOL'S NAVISOFT SERVER SOFTWARE ON INTEL'S WEB



         5  SERVER; IS THAT CORRECT?



         6  A.   I DON'T RECALL THOSE SPECIFIC WORDS EITHER BUNDLING



         7  OR UNHAPPY, BUT IT'S ENTIRELY THE CASE THAT THEY DID TRY



         8  TO CONVINCE US THAT WE SHOULD USE NETSCAPE'S SERVER



         9  PRODUCT.



        10  Q.   AND TO GET RID OF THE AOL NAVISOFT WEB SERVER



        11  SOFTWARE; IS THAT CORRECT?



        12  A.   TO USE THEIR SERVER IN LIEU OF THAT, YES.



        13  Q.   AND MR. ANDREESSEN TOLD YOU THAT IF THERE IS GOING TO



        14  BE A CLOSE TECHNOLOGY PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN INTEL AND



        15  NETSCAPE, IT WAS INCONSISTENT WITH THAT FOR INTEL TO BE



        16  SHIPPING SOFTWARE FROM ONE OF NETSCAPE'S COMPETITORS;



        17  CORRECT?



        18  A.   IF MARC SAID THAT, I DON'T RECALL.



        19  Q.   WELL, YOU DON'T REMEMBER MR. ANDREESSEN SAYING THAT,



        20  I TAKE IT?



        21  A.   YOU APPEAR TO BE RELATING A QUOTE.  I DON'T REMEMBER



        22  THAT QUOTE.



        23           MR. HOLLEY:  WELL, I OFFER AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT



        24  1619, AN E-MAIL MESSAGE FROM MARC ANDREESSEN AT NETSCAPE



        25  TO MR. TURPIN, THE JIM BARKSDALE STAFF, TOM PAQUIN AND�
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         1  OTHERS, DATED SEPTEMBER 18, 1995.



         2           MR. BOIES:  MAY I INQUIRE FROM THE COURT, IS THIS



         3  SOMETHING THAT IS SUPPOSED TO HAVE GONE TO THE WITNESS?



         4           MR. HOLLEY:  I'M SORRY, MR. BOIES.  YOUR HONOR,



         5  IN ANSWER TO MR. BOIES'S QUESTION, THIS IS A MEMORANDUM



         6  FROM MR. ANDREESSEN TO HIS COLLEAGUES AT NETSCAPE



         7  CONCERNING A VISIT THAT THEY MADE TO MR. MCGEADY IN



         8  PORTLAND, OREGON, IN SEPTEMBER OF 1995.



         9           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, I OBJECT.



        10           I ALSO OBJECT ON GROUNDS THAT IT'S OUTSIDE THE



        11  SCOPE OF ANYTHING I DID ON REDIRECT EXAMINATION.



        12           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  HOW DOES IT TOUCH THE



        13  REDIRECT EXAMINATION?



        14           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, ONCE AGAIN, ON REDIRECT



        15  EXAMINATION, MR. BOIES WAS SUGGESTING THAT THERE WAS



        16  SOMETHING INAPPROPRIATE ABOUT MICROSOFT'S DISCUSSIONS WITH



        17  INTEL ABOUT THINGS LIKE VIRTUAL MACHINES AND WHO OUGHT TO



        18  COOPERATE WITH WHOM, AND I THINK THIS DISCUSSION BETWEEN



        19  NETSCAPE AND INTEL GOES DIRECTLY TO THAT POINT.  IF IT'S



        20  IMPROPER IN ONE INSTANCE, IT'S IMPROPER IN THE OTHER.



        21           THE COURT:  OBJECTION IS OVERRULED.  DEFENDANT'S



        22  EXHIBIT 1619 IS ADMITTED.



        23                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1619 WAS



        24                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



        25  BY MR. HOLLEY:�

                                                           67



         1  Q.   NOW, LOOKING AT THE LAST PAGE OF THIS MEMORANDUM FROM



         2  MR. ANDREESSEN TO HIS COLLEAGUES WHICH RELATES TO A



         3  MEETING THAT YOU HAD WITH THEM IN OREGON, DO YOU SEE THE



         4  LAST PARAGRAPH THAT SAYS, "RE: THE PC SERVER BUNDLING DEAL



         5  THEY GOT GOING WITH AOL NAVISOFT"?  ARE YOU WITH ME THERE,



         6  SIR?



         7  A.   YES.  IF YOU DON'T MIND, I WOULD LIKE TO TAKE A



         8  MINUTE TO READ THE CONTEXT.



         9  Q.   SURE, TAKE AS MUCH TIME AS YOU NEED.



        10           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT)



        11  A.   OKAY.



        12  Q.   MR. ANDREESSEN REPORTS TO HIS COLLEAGUES AT NETSCAPE,



        13  INCLUDING MR. BARKSDALE, "RE: THE PC SERVER BUNDLING DEAL



        14  THAT THEY'VE GOT GOING WITH AOL NAVISOFT.  STEVE TOLD US



        15  THAT THE LABS COULDN'T HELP NETSCAPE ON THAT TOPIC.  I



        16  DON'T BUY IT.  I THINK IF WE ARE GOING TO HAVE A CLOSE



        17  TECHNOLOGY PARTNERSHIP WITH INTEL AND SERVE AS AN



        18  ALTERNATE ROUTE FOR TECHNOLOGY DISTRIBUTION TO MICROSOFT,



        19  THEY SHOULD BUNDLE OUR SOFTWARE WITH THEIR SERVER SYSTEMS



        20  AND NOT SOMEONE ELSE'S."



        21           NOW, AS A MATTER OF FACT, AFTER YOU MET WITH



        22  MR. ANDREESSEN AND MR. SCHELL IN PORTLAND IN SEPTEMBER OF



        23  1995, INTEL DID SWITCH FROM AOL NAVISOFT SERVER SOFTWARE



        24  TO NETSCAPE SERVER SOFTWARE; IS THAT CORRECT?



        25  A.   WE SWITCHED SERVICE SOFTWARE BECAUSE OUR CUSTOMERS�
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         1  WERE ASKING, NOT AS ANY RESULT OF THIS MEETING.



         2           AND IN PARTICULAR, AS I POINT OUT VERY CLEARLY



         3  HERE, IN OUR POSITION IN THE INTEL ARCHITECTURE LABS, I



         4  WASN'T GOING TO INFLUENCE MIKE MAERZ AND HIS PRODUCT.  I



         5  DID NOT INFLUENCE THAT, AND I THINK IT'S LIKELY THAT MIKE



         6  WASN'T EVEN AWARE OF THIS CONTENTION.



         7  Q.   BUT THE ANSWER TO MY QUESTION, MR. MCGEADY, IS THAT,



         8  IN FACT, AFTER THIS MEETING IN PORTLAND, OREGON, IN



         9  SEPTEMBER OF 1995, INTEL DID SWITCH FROM AOL NAVISOFT



        10  SERVER SOFTWARE TO NETSCAPE SERVER SOFTWARE?



        11  A.   FOR A PERIOD OF TIME, YES, THEY DID.



        12           MR. HOLLEY:  I HAVE NO FURTHER QUESTIONS, YOUR



        13  HONOR.



        14           THE COURT:  REDIRECT?



        15           MR. BOIES:  JUST BRIEFLY, YOUR HONOR.



        16                 FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION



        17  BY MR. BOIES:



        18  Q.   FIRST, WITH RESPECT TO DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1619, I



        19  WOULD LIKE TO EXPLORE A COUPLE OF THINGS ABOUT WHAT



        20  MR. HOLLEY SUGGESTED ABOUT WHETHER THIS IS THE SAME AS



        21  WHAT MICROSOFT WAS DOING WITH INTEL.



        22           DO YOU THINK THAT THIS IS THE SAME OR IN ANY WAY



        23  RELATED TO WHAT MICROSOFT WAS DOING WITH INTEL,



        24  MR. MCGEADY?



        25  A.   NO, I CAN'T IMAGINE THAT ONE COULD CREATE ANY�
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         1  CREDIBLE ANALOGY HERE.  MICROSOFT WAS USING ITS



         2  ESTABLISHED POSITION AND OPERATING SYSTEMS TO PREVENT US



         3  FROM ENTERING THAT MARKETPLACE.  THIS IS A SUGGESTION, THE



         4  ONE THAT WASN'T LISTENED TO, THAT WE MIGHT HAVE A BETTER



         5  RELATIONSHIP IN THE FUTURE IF WE USE THE PRODUCT OF THIS



         6  COMPANY.  I DON'T SEE ANYTHING EVEN REMOTELY ANALOGOUS TO



         7  THOSE TWO SITUATIONS.



         8  Q.   LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO--CAN YOU PUT THIS UP



         9  ON THE SCREEN AS YOU DID BEFORE?  AND BLOW UP THE MIDDLE



        10  OF THE PAGE, WHERE IT SAYS, "ONE OF THEIR MAJOR



        11  MOTIVATIONS," REFERRING TO INTEL, "IS THAT IF THEY ONLY



        12  HAVE MICROSOFT AS A SINGLE CHANNEL TO INNOVATE ON THE PC



        13  PLATFORM, THEN MICROSOFT CONTROLS THE RATE OF INNOVATION



        14  AND SLOWS THINGS DOWN TO SUIT MICROSOFT'S INTERESTS, WHICH



        15  IS NOT IN INTEL'S BEST INTERESTS."



        16           I REALIZE YOU NEVER SAW THIS BEFORE, MR. MCGEADY,



        17  BUT DOES THAT ACCURATELY REFLECT AT LEAST ONE OF WHAT



        18  INTEL'S CONCERNS WAS?



        19  A.   YES.  MARC IS REPORTING WHAT I SAID, AND I'M SURE I



        20  SAID IT IN PRETTY MUCH THAT WAY.



        21  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO GO NEXT TO DEFENDANT'S



        22  EXHIBIT 1838.



        23           IF ALL OF THE MAKERS OF UNIX OPERATING SYSTEMS



        24  GOT TOGETHER IN ONE ROOM, MR. MCGEADY, WHAT WOULD THEIR



        25  SHARE OF THE PC OPERATING SYSTEM MARKET BE?�
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         1  A.   I THINK IF IT TOUCHED ONE OR TWO PERCENT, THAT WOULD



         2  PROBABLY BE ON THE HIGH END.



         3  Q.   ONE OR TWO PERCENT, ALL OF THEM COMBINED?



         4  A.   YES.



         5  Q.   LET ME GO, LAST, TO DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1837, WHICH



         6  IS THE MICROSOFT DOCUMENT THAT MR. HOLLEY BEGAN WITH.



         7  ACTUALLY, IT IS--IT'S PRODUCED FROM MICROSOFT'S FILES, BUT



         8  IT IS AN INTEL RESPONSE TO A MICROSOFT DOCUMENT.



         9           AND COULD WE GET THIS PAGE BLOWN UP, THE FIRST



        10  PAGE, THE ONE MR. HOLLEY REFERRED TO?  AND THEN THE NEXT



        11  PAGE.  AND THEN IF WE COULD BLOW UP THE SUMMARY.  AND



        12  PERHAPS WE COULD HIGHLIGHT THE NEXT-TO-LAST SENTENCE IN



        13  THE SUMMARY OF THAT SENTENCE THAT BEGINS "HOWEVER," AND



        14  WHICH READS, "HOWEVER, PARTS OF YOUR LETTER SUGGEST THAT



        15  THE PRICE OF COOPERATION WITH MICROSOFT WOULD BE



        16  ABANDONMENT OF NATIVE AUDIO OR IASPOX.  SUCH A SUGGESTION



        17  WOULD BE IMPROPER AND WOULD NOT REFLECT A HEALTHY OR



        18  ACCEPTABLE RELATIONSHIP WITH INTEL AND MICROSOFT."



        19           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?



        20  A.   YES, I DO.



        21  Q.   AND THIS IS DATED AT THE END OF JUNE 1995?



        22  A.   YES, IT IS.



        23  Q.   AT OR AFTER THIS TIME, INSOFAR AS YOU ARE AWARE, DID



        24  MICROSOFT ATTEMPT TO INFLUENCE INTEL AS THE PRICE OF



        25  COOPERATION TO ABANDON WHAT IS REFERRED TO HERE?�
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         1  A.   YES.  BITS AND PIECES OF NATIVE AUDIO MAY HAVE BEEN



         2  ACCEPTED.  IASPOX, THE REALTIME OPERATING SYSTEM THAT I



         3  REFERRED TO THAT ALLOWED REALTIME THINGS TO HAPPEN, TO THE



         4  BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, WAS NEVER, AT LEAST, BROADLY MADE



         5  AVAILABLE.  SO, ULTIMATELY, THE PRICE OF COOPERATION WAS



         6  ABANDONMENT OF SIGNIFICANT PARTS OF NSP.



         7  Q.   AND JUST ONE MORE QUESTION.  NOW THIS IS THE BOTTOM



         8  OF THE PAGE.  IT'S THE INTEL ACTION I5.  IT SAYS, "INTEL



         9  WILL CLEAN UP ITS COLLATERAL FOR IASPOX AND REMOVE ANY



        10  REFERENCES TO IASPOX AS AN API FOR APPLICATIONS



        11  DEVELOPERS."



        12           DO YOU SEE THAT?



        13  A.   YES.



        14  Q.   DO YOU HAVE ANY UNDERSTANDING AS TO WHY MICROSOFT



        15  WANTED THAT?



        16  A.   AGAIN, MICROSOFT DIDN'T WANT US REFLECTING THESE



        17  CAPABILITIES TO APPLICATION DEVELOPERS.  THEY WANTED



        18  CONTROL OF THE INTERFACES THAT APPLICATION DEVELOPERS SAW.



        19           MR. BOIES:  NO MORE QUESTIONS, YOUR HONOR.



        20           MR. HOLLEY:  JUST THREE, YOUR HONOR.



        21           THE COURT:  OF COURSE.



        22                 FURTHER RECROSS-EXAMINATION



        23  BY MR. HOLLEY:



        24  Q.   MR. BOIES ASKED YOU ON RE-REDIRECT EXAMINATION ABOUT



        25  THE CONVERSATION THAT YOU HAD WITH MR. ANDREESSEN AND�
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         1  MR. SCHELL IN SEPTEMBER OF 1995.



         2           AT THAT TIME NETSCAPE'S SHARE OF WEB-BROWSING



         3  SOFTWARE WAS IN EXCESS OF 80 PERCENT; CORRECT?



         4  A.   WELL, I DON'T KNOW THE SPECIFIC NUMBER.  THAT SOUNDS



         5  PLAUSIBLE.



         6  Q.   AND MR. BOIES ASKED YOU ON RE-REDIRECT EXAMINATION



         7  ABOUT THE UNIX VENDORS LISTED ON DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1838,



         8  AND YOU TOLD HIM YOU THOUGHT THAT COLLECTIVELY THEY WOULD



         9  ACCOUNT FOR ONE PERCENT OF THE PC SEGMENT OF THE OPERATING



        10  SYSTEM BUSINESS.  THEY WOULD ACCOUNT COLLECTIVELY FOR



        11  ROUGHLY 85 PERCENT OF THE SERVER OPERATING SYSTEM



        12  BUSINESS; IS THAT CORRECT?



        13  A.   I'M NOT CERTAIN.  IT DEPENDS EXACTLY, OF COURSE, ON



        14  WHAT TIME WHEN YOU'RE SPEAKING ABOUT AND EXACTLY HOW YOU



        15  DEFINE SERVER.  IT'S MUCH EASIER TO DEFINE THE OVERALL PC



        16  MARKETPLACE THAN IT WOULD BE TO DEFINE THOSE OTHER



        17  MARKETPLACES, GIVEN THE CHANGES THAT OCCUR IN THEM.



        18  Q.   THESE VARIANTS OF UNIX, IF ONE RESTRICTED THE RANGE



        19  OF INTERESTS TO PURELY WEB SERVERS, WOULD ACCOUNT FOR IN



        20  EXCESS OF 80 PERCENT OF THAT BUSINESS; CORRECT?



        21  A.   I'M NOT SURE I KNOW WHAT YOU'RE GETTING AT.  ALL OF



        22  THESE OPERATING SYSTEMS WILL RUN A WEB SERVER, WILL RUN



        23  WEB SERVER SOFTWARE.  A NUMBER OF THESE ARE TARGETED AT



        24  DESKTOP PLATFORMS.  THE APPLE ONE, SOME OF THE SILICON



        25  GRAPHICS ONES AND SOME OF THE SUN ONES.  SO, THESE AREN'T�
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         1  ALL TARGETED SERVERS, FOR ONE THING; AND FOR A SECOND



         2  THING, THEY WILL ALL RUN WEB SERVERS.



         3  Q.   AND MY QUESTION TO YOU IS:  IF YOU LOOK AT THE



         4  COMPUTERS IN THE WORLD THAT ARE RUNNING WEB SERVERS, THE



         5  ONES THAT ARE RUNNING UNIX AS OPPOSED TO ANY VERSION OF



         6  WINDOWS ACCOUNT FOR ROUGHLY 80 TO 90 PERCENT OF THE



         7  MARKET; IS THAT CORRECT?



         8  A.   WELL, I DON'T KNOW PRECISELY, BUT MY IMPRESSION IS



         9  THAT IT WOULDN'T BE CORRECT, ESPECIALLY GIVEN THAT THERE



        10  IS A PERSONAL WEB SERVER THAT SHIPS WITH MICROSOFT



        11  INTERNET EXPLORER THAT MAKES ESSENTIALLY EVERY DESKTOP



        12  MACHINE INTO A WEB SERVER.



        13  Q.   I WILL LEAVE THAT ONE ALONE.



        14           LOOKING BACK AT--



        15           MR. HOLLEY:  MY LAST QUESTION, YOUR HONOR.



        16  BY MR. HOLLEY:



        17  Q.   LOOKING BACK AT DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1836, AND IN



        18  PARTICULAR TO THE RESPONSE TO MR. KINNIE'S FAX THAT



        19  APPEARS ON THE SECOND PAGE OF THIS DOCUMENT, IT SAYS



        20  "RESPONSE TO KINNIE'S FAX," IT SAYS, "THIS WAS MAILED TO



        21  KINNIE AND WHITTIER TODAY."



        22           IN THIS FAX, MR. LUDWIG REPLIES TO MR. KINNIE,



        23  WHICH IS THE MEMO THAT MR. BOIES SHOWED YOU ON



        24  RE-REDIRECT, AND HE SAYS IN THE THIRD PARAGRAPH UNDER



        25  SUMMARY, "HOWEVER, IN THE SHORT AND MEDIUM TERM, INTEL'S�
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         1  INSISTENCE ON SHIPPING THE CURRENT NSP SOFTWARE OR SLIGHT



         2  REVISIONS OF IT TO CUSTOMERS IS NOT ACCEPTABLE.  THERE IS



         3  NOT ADEQUATE TIME IN THE SCHEDULE TO DO THE SIGNIFICANT



         4  QUALITY ASSURANCE WHICH NEEDS TO BE DONE.  AS A RESULT, WE



         5  BELIEVE THAT NSP WILL BECOME ASSOCIATED WITH POOR QUALITY



         6  WHICH IS A DISSERVICE TO OUR JOINT LONG-TERM GOALS."



         7           THIS IS CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING, IS IT



         8  NOT, MR. MCGEADY, OF MICROSOFT'S POSITION REGARDING ITS



         9  CONCERNS ABOUT THE QUALITY OF NSP SYSTEM SOFTWARE?



        10  A.   COULD YOU REPEAT THE QUESTION?  THE LAST PART OF IT?



        11  Q.   SURE.



        12           THE STATEMENT MADE HERE THAT THERE IS NOT



        13  SUFFICIENT TIME IN JUNE OR JULY OF 1995 TO DO SIGNIFICANT



        14  QUALITY ASSURANCE THAT NEEDS TO BE DONE AND THE RESULTING



        15  FEAR THAT NSP WILL BECOME ASSOCIATED WITH POOR QUALITY WAS



        16  A CONCERN THAT MICROSOFT VOICED TO INTEL IN THE SUMMER OF



        17  1995?



        18  A.   THAT WAS ONE OF THE CONCERNS THAT MICROSOFT HAD.



        19           MR. HOLLEY:  NO FURTHER QUESTIONS.



        20                 FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION



        21  BY MR. BOIES:



        22  Q.   AT THE TIME OF YOUR CONVERSATIONS WITH NETSCAPE OR AT



        23  ANY OTHER TIME, DID NETSCAPE HAVE ANY POWER TO FORCE INTEL



        24  TO DO SOMETHING THAT INTEL DIDN'T TO WANT DO?



        25  A.   NO, NEVER.�
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         1           MR. BOIES:  NO MORE.



         2           THE COURT:  YOU CAN HAVE ONE IF YOU WANT IT.



         3           MR. HOLLEY:  I WILL STAND DOWN, YOUR HONOR.



         4           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.



         5           MR. MCGEADY, TO WHAT EXTENT DO YOU UNDERSTAND



         6  THAT YOU ARE A SPOKESMAN FOR INTEL CORPORATION HERE AS



         7  DISTINGUISHED FROM SPEAKING FOR YOURSELF?



         8           THE WITNESS:  YOUR HONOR, I AM REFERRING TO



         9  ACTIVITIES AND PROGRAMS THAT OCCURRED AT INTEL IN 1995 AND



        10  1996.  AND IN THAT REGARD, I BELIEVE THAT I AM



        11  REPRESENTING OUR CORPORATE POLICY AND OUR STRATEGY AT THAT



        12  TIME.



        13           THE COURT:  AND YOU ARE HEAR WITH THE BLESSING OF



        14  YOUR CEO AND YOUR CORPORATE SUPERIOR?



        15           THE WITNESS:  "BLESSING" WOULD BE A STRONG WORD.



        16  I WAS SUBPOENAED TO APPEAR HERE.  THERE WAS--TO THE BEST



        17  OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THERE WAS NO ACTION INSIDE INTEL TO



        18  PREVENT MY APPEARANCE HERE.



        19           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  LET ME REPHRASE IT.



        20           TO WHAT EXTENT DO YOU, YOURSELF, THINK YOU SPEAK



        21  FOR THE CORPORATION, THE TESTIMONY IS CONSISTENT WITH WHAT



        22  YOU UNDERSTAND THE CORPORATION'S POSITION TO BE?



        23           THE WITNESS:  I'M NOT TRYING TO BE EVASIVE, YOUR



        24  HONOR.  IT'S A DIFFICULT QUESTION.  INTEL IS A LARGE



        25  CORPORATION, AND THERE IS A LOT OF PEOPLE WITH A LOT OF�
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         1  DIFFERENT OPINIONS.



         2           I BELIEVE THAT IN CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES,



         3  DR. GROVE AND OTHER EXECUTIVES MIGHT SHARE SOME OF MY



         4  OPINIONS.  IN SOME CASES THEY WOULD SHARE THEM PRIVATELY.



         5  THEY MAY NOT AGREE WITH MY EXPRESSION OF THEM.  AND IN



         6  OTHER SITUATIONS, I CAN IMAGINE THAT THEY MIGHT DISAGREE



         7  WITH MY OPINIONS.



         8           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  ARE YOU AWARE OF ANY



         9  INSTANCE IN WHICH ARE ACTUALLY AT VARIANCE WITH WHAT YOU



        10  UNDERSTAND TO BE CORPORATE POLICY?



        11           THE WITNESS:  ONLY--YOUR HONOR, PERHAPS ONLY THE



        12  MOST DRAMATIC.  IT'S IMPORTANT TO INTEL TO MAINTAIN A



        13  POSITIVE WORKING RELATIONSHIP WITH MICROSOFT.



        14           THE COURT:  I UNDERSTAND.



        15           THE WITNESS:  MY APPEARANCE HERE, OBVIOUSLY,



        16  CREATES A PROBLEM THERE.  THAT IS--WOULD BE THE ONLY WAY



        17  IN WHICH I WOULD STRONGLY THINK THAT THIS IS IN VARIANCE



        18  WITH INTEL'S CORPORATE POLICIES.



        19           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  THANK YOU.  I THINK THAT



        20  CLARIFIES THINGS.



        21           MR. BOIES, DO YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS?



        22           MR. BOIES:  NOTHING FURTHER, YOUR HONOR.



        23           THE COURT:  MR. HOLLEY, DO YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS



        24  IN THAT VEIN?



        25           MR. HOLLEY:  I DO, YOUR HONOR.  IF YOU GIVE ME 30�
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         1  SECONDS TO FIND THE APPROPRIATE DOCUMENT.



         2           THE COURT:  SURE.



         3           (PAUSE.)



         4                 FURTHER RECROSS-EXAMINATION



         5  BY MR. HOLLEY:



         6  Q.   MR. MCGEADY, DO YOU STILL HAVE WITH YOU UP THERE



         7  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1808, WHICH IS THE MESSAGE THAT YOU



         8  SENT TO JIM CLARK ON JULY 13TH OF 1998?  AND I'M



         9  INTERESTED IN THE EMBEDDED MESSAGE FROM YOU TO MR. CLARK,



        10  WHICH IS IN THE MIDDLE, STARTING "STEVE MCGEADY WROTE"



        11  DOWN TO MCG.



        12  A.   YES, I HAVE THAT.



        13  Q.   AND YOU SAY IN THE THIRD PARAGRAPH OF THIS, "IF THE



        14  DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE ASKS ME TO TESTIFY TO THAT EFFECT, I



        15  WILL WITHOUT HESITATION.  I DON'T WANT TO GO ON RECORD AS



        16  VOLUNTEERING TO TESTIFY.  THAT WOULD PISS OFF INTEL'S



        17  LAWYERS TO NO END.  BUT IF ASKED, I WOULD COOPERATE 100



        18  PERCENT.  I THINK YOU SEE THE SITUATION HERE."



        19           THIS IS AN INDICATION THAT YOU BELIEVE,



        20  MR. MCGEADY, THAT YOUR TESTIMONY HERE, IN MANY RESPECTS,



        21  IS INCONSISTENT WITH THE BELIEFS OF CRAIG BARRETT, FRANK



        22  GILL, ANDY GROVE AND OTHER SENIOR EXECUTIVES OF THE INTEL



        23  CORPORATION; CORRECT?



        24  A.   NO.  THIS IS AN INDICATION OF THE FACT THAT IF I WERE



        25  TO DO AN END-RUN AROUND INTEL'S LAWYERS TO THE JUSTICE�
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         1  DEPARTMENT, THEY WOULDN'T BE KINDLY DISPOSED.



         2           MR. HOLLEY:  NO FURTHER QUESTIONS, YOUR HONOR.



         3           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  THANK YOU, MR. MCGEADY.



         4  YOU MAY BE EXCUSED.



         5           THE WITNESS:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.



         6           (WITNESS STEPS DOCUMENT.)



         7           THE COURT:  AND WE ARE NOT GOING TO START A NEW



         8  WITNESS THIS AFTERNOON.



         9           MR. BOIES:  THAT'S A GOOD THING, YOUR HONOR,



        10  BECAUSE WE DON'T HAVE ONE HERE.



        11           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  WHO DO WE HAVE FOR MONDAY



        12  MORNING?



        13           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, MONDAY MORNING WE WILL



        14  HAVE MR. WEADOCK, AND THEN HE WILL BE FOLLOWED BY



        15  MR. SOYRING OF IBM, AND I BELIEVE THAT WOULD CONSUME THE



        16  WEEK.



        17           THE COURT:  AT THE CURRENT RATE IT PROBABLY WILL.



        18           ALL RIGHT.  HAVE A NICE WEEKEND.  WE WILL SEE YOU



        19  MONDAY MORNING.



        20           (WHEREUPON, AT 4:20 P.M., THE HEARING WAS



        21  ADJOURNED UNTIL 10:00, NOVEMBER 16, 1998.)



        22



        23



        24



        25�
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         1                   CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER



         2



         3           I, DAVID A. KASDAN, RPR, COURT REPORTER, DO



         4  HEREBY TESTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING PROCEEDINGS WERE



         5  STENOGRAPHICALLY RECORDED BY ME AND THEREAFTER REDUCED TO



         6  TYPEWRITTEN FORM BY COMPUTER-ASSISTED TRANSCRIPTION UNDER



         7  MY DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION; AND THAT THE FOREGOING



         8  TRANSCRIPT IS A TRUE RECORD AND ACCURATE RECORD OF THE



         9  PROCEEDINGS.



        10           I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT I AM NEITHER COUNSEL FOR,



        11  RELATED TO, NOR EMPLOYED BY ANY OF THE PARTIES TO THIS



        12  ACTION IN THIS PROCEEDING, NOR FINANCIALLY OR OTHERWISE



        13  INTERESTED IN THE OUTCOME OF THIS LITIGATION.



        14

                                    ______________________

        15                          DAVID A. KASDAN
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